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HSBC
27
L oL LIniTED 1.00]  830,526.76]  830,526.76| 12,206,756.32| 12,206,756.32| 18.53
2 [ A e s 1,503.62 1,652.20| 2,633,121.91 4,921.92| 7,843,657.33| 11.01
3 [TYRUS CAPITAL EVENT FUND 49,376.28 116.50|  5,752,325.11 155.10|  7,658,153.27| 11.63
4 Eﬁﬁg“ POINT TOTAL RETURN 4,281.36 1,119.01|  4,794,737.01 1,443.42| 6,179,788.45| 9.38
5 (i o b SO B 3,265.42 1,655.96| 5,407,388.61 1,601.27| 5,228,828.95| 7.9
6 |DKIL CLASS C TRANCHE 4 FUND 41,173.61 100.00|  4,117,360.60 122.20| 5,031,368.00| 7.64
7 |STARBOARD VALUE 2,000.65 2,499.18|  5,000,000.00 2,315.10| 4,631,715.48| 7.03
CH i 22,610.49 126.70|  2,864,859.94 164.06| 3,700,481.13| 5.63
g [R5 o e INTNATL CL 7S 2 2,252.87 1,327.33|  2,990,295.91 1,501.72| 3,585,936.44| 5.44
10|fA-o0n ENANGED LTD CLASS 25,000.00 100.00|  2,500,000.00 101.87| 2,546,763.63| 3.87
11 [AG SUPER INTL CL P S 1 FUND 1,570.25 1,322.27|  2,076,293.08 1,502.73| 2,500,995.26| 3.80
12 gg\'(REUZS'NT OFFSHORE C NI 418.88 4,844.11|  2,029,100.83 4,917.44| 2,059,815.37| 3.13
13 [THIRD POINT OFFSHORE LTD 3,400.92 320.38|  1,123,156.00 320.70| 1,124,235.07| 1.71
14| (00D, FOINT OFFSHORE & N 2,842.14 330.10|  938,192.46 337.41|  958,070.84| 1.46
15| 1150 POINT ULTRA LTD CLASS 555.95 1,112.16]  618,301.45 1,080.27|  605,577.99| 0.92
16| e 1o L 358.04 399.93|  143,103.52 498.36|  178,435.25| 0.27
17 ’F*ﬁNgLASS XXX SERIES 1 SI 8.56 1,617.74 13,843.00 1,617.74 13,843.00| 0.02
18 [AG CLASS XXXX S2 SI FUND 7.31 1,616.88 11,821.00 1,616.88 11,821.00| 0.02
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\;EEDCEEEIX SEEOg:N;IEng 6,164.16 1,012.45| 6,240,928.75 1,254.55 7,733,221.46| 19.28
CQS ABS FEEDER FUND CL B 1,229.48 4,382.16| 5,387,783.74 5,474.19 6,730,414.85| 16.78
USD FUND

%NEUROPE OVERSEAS FUND T 4,817.43 1,000.24| 4,818,608.95 1,386.14| 6,677,641.56| 16.65
KING STREET EUROPE FUND 41,269.27 112.94| 4,660,922.58 140.76 5,809,074.02| 14.49
AG SUPER FUND USD 4,220.72 1,000.00f 4,220,720.00 1,327.79 5,604,209.99| 13.98
CAPEVIEW RECOVERY FUND 10,660.77 335.98| 3,581,798.10 354.08 3,774,747.35] 9.41

PALMERSTON CREDIT FEEDER
FUND PALMERSTON CREDIT 35,000.00 100.00 3,500,000.00 100.97 3,534,113.66| 8.81
FEEDER FUND

AG SUPER INTER CYYY S1 IXKJ

FUND 125.73 1,230.76 154,743.26 1,025.13 128,889.59| 0.32
AG SUPER FUND INTL LTD USD

FUND AG SUPER EUND INTL LT 79.16 1,254.58 99,312.81 1,250.70 99,005.41] 0.25
AG SUPER FD INTERNATIONAL 5.15 1,240.94 6,390.85 1,888.47 9,725.62| 0.02

LTD CLASS YYY SERIES 2

27

27
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20 601,665,000.00 72,910 113.23 13,721
’1 290,572,000.00 35,212 78.79 9,548
- 304,090,009.72 36,850 99.12 12,011
’3 244,549,884.22 29,635 98.58 11,946
” 105,144,171.21 12,741 101.25 12,269
- 82,838,978.49 10,038 119.30 14,457
26 75,327,234.72 9,128 133.82 16,216
”7 66,098,117.17 8,010 140.20 16,989
26 75,414,727.98 9,139 136.76 16,573
10 69,187,379.52 8,384 133.34 16,158
11 70,176,835.01 8,504 135.32 16,398
12 70,064,098.51 8,490 135.27 16,392
27 65,803,402.66 7,974 134.10 16,250
68,008,585.33 8,241 138.65 16,802
68,407,697.92 8,290 139.76 16,936
66,098,117.17 8,010 140.20 16,989
66,871,267.93 8,103 141.97 17,204
66,014,789.29 8,000 140.06 16,972
61,178,408.53 7,414 140.17 16,986
59,409,341.77 7,199 135.94 16,473
HSBC 23 9 30
SOF
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20
21
115.48 13,994
192,290,303.33 23,302
22 115.58 15,726
119.00 14,420
196,702,676.72 23,836
23 119.21 16,220
101.37 12,284
63,926,197.49 7,747
24 101.18 13,767
111.53 13,515
61,181,867.70 7,414
25 111.02 15,105
120.09 14,553
52,763,721.75 6,394
26 119.32 16,235
121.86 14,767
40,559,137.17 4,915
27 120.69 16,421
121.24 14,692
26 47,676,219.32 5,777
120.26 16,363
119.82 14,520
10 44,361,207.18 5,376
120.37 16,378
120.52 14,605
11 44,615,290.24 5,406
118.90 16,178
120.31 14,579
12 44,737,769.78 5,421
119.33 16,236
120.09 14,553
27 41,220,483.54 4,995
119.04 16,197
120.98 14,660
41,433,304.74 5,021
119.89 16,312
121.43 14,715
41,433,304.74 5,021
120.35 16,375
121.86 14,767
40,559,137.17 4,915
120.69 16,421
122.18 14,806
40,561,859.20 4,915
120.96 16,458
121.30 14,699
40,350,188.16 4,890
120.04 16,333
121.85 14,766
38,816,569.79 4,704
120.53 16,399
121.03 14,666
38,702,875.81 4,690
119.65 16,280
HSBC 21 29
HSBC 23 11 1 HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
100
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HSBC
113.23 13.23
113.23 78.79 30.42
78.79 99.12 25.80
99.12 98.58 -0.54
98.58 101.25 2.71
101.25 119.30 17.83
119.30 133.82 12.17
133.82 140.20 4.77
100x%
100
HSBC
100.00 115.48 15.48
115.48 119.00 3.05
119.00 101.37 14.82
101.37 111.53 10.02
111.53 120.09 7.68
120.09 121.86 1.47
100x

100
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100.00 115.58 15.58
115.58 119.21 3.14
119.21 101.18 15.12
101.18 111.02 9.73
111.02 119.32 7.48
119.32 120.69 1.15
100x
100
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4,737,826.52 230,352.94 4,507,473.58
187,964.07 0 187,964.07
310,168.94 1,702,657.10 3,114,985.42
14,091.91 38,272.77 163,783.21
22,025.41 490,166.16 2,646,844.67
5,324.45 23,195.70 145,911.96
9,178.26 489,428.98 2,166,593.95
©) (12,734.60) (133,177.36)

0 1,261,552.69 905,041.26

©) (73,809.92) (59,367.44)

0 264,140.63 640,900.63

©0) (17,241.93) (42,125.51)
20,856.13 134,173.32 527,583.44
©) (13,040.27) (29,085.24)
9,391.42 83,731.66 453,243.20
©0) (6,182.96) (22,902.28)
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HSBC
) ) )
) ) )
1,293,846.59 261,551.27 1,032,295.32
32,962.52 0 32,962.52
262,175.87 283,963.51 1,010,507.68
(19,792.46) (8,969.49) (43,785.49)
559,590.99 1,114,765.67 455,333.00
(32,033.94) ©) (75,819.43)
63,431.65 118,295.72 400,468.93
©) (57,138.82) (18,680.61)
18,058.15 104,971.60 313,555.48
©0) (3,104.17) (15,576.44)
7,279.50 97,684.49 223,150.49
(4,956.23) (11,482.00) (9,050.67)
) ) )
) ) )
188,598.70 6,665.02 181,933.68
3,685.92 0 3,685.92
76,459.49 84,960.15 173,433.02
(2,141.89) (702.95) (5,124.86)
114,417.08 202,273.17 85,576.93
(1,237.27) ©) (6,362.13)
4,307.10 28,050.09 61,833.94
©0) (5,124.86) (1,237.27)
0 26,331.00 35,502.94
©0) (873.93) (363.34)
12,527.15 13,050.01 34,980.08
©) ©) (363.34)
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2001

1988 2003

EU

http://www.hsbcnet.com/gbm/global-utilities/privacy-data-protection.html
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HSBC
2015 30

2015 30 2014 30

71,912 8,714 82,938 10,050
510 62 55 7
23 3 23 3
533 65 78 9

72,445 8,779 83,016 10,060

(6,347) (769) (7,689) (932)

(6,347) (769) (7,689) (932)

66,098 8,010 75,327 9,128

2015 28 HSBC
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HSBC
2015 30
2015 30 2014 30
3,882 470 11,346 1,375
11 (85) (10) (39) )
(1,329) (161) (1,995) (242)
(1,414) @a71) (2,034) (246)
2,468 299 9,312 1,128
2015 30
2015 30 2014 30
75,327 9,128 82,839 10,038
1,287 2,733
(12,984) (1,573) (19,557) (2,370)
(11,697) (1,417) (16,824) (2,039)
2,468 299 9,312 1,128
66,098 8,010 75,327 9,128
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2015 30 2014 30
6,123 4,102
(1,409) 6,924
(923) 361
91 (41)
3,882 11,346
2015 30 2014 30
(1,178) (1,296)
) (548)
(1,183) (1,844)
D) (79)
(19) (24)
(56) (48)
(75) (72)
(1,329) (1,995)
2007 HSBC
HSBC
1.65
1,177,500 2014 1,295,676

2014

HSBC HSBC
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10 5,340 2014
139,741 2014 161,142
C.1. HSBC
0.10
2014 78,548

2015 30 2014 30
445 55
65
510 55

2015 30 2014 30
23 23

C.1.
2015 30 A+ 2014
2014 Aa3

71/209



10

2014

2014

2015

2013

2014

EDINETOOOO

O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2015 30 2014 30
11 (6,186) (7,501)
(140) (161)
12 - (26)
1) (€))
(6,347) (7,689)
HSBC 1989
1,200
600
527,583.44 27,071.90 554,655.34
9,391.42 - 9,391.42
(83,731.66) (9,915.76) (93,647.42)
30
453,243.20 17,156.14 470,399.34
640,900.63 43,225.10 684,125.73
20,856.13 20,856.13
(134,173.32) (16,153.20) (150,326.52)
30
527,583.44 27,071.90 554,655.34
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15

2015 4 30 63,544 2,554 66,098

2014 4 30 70,601 4,726 75,327

2013 4 30 76,458 6,381 82,839
11

HSBC C.I.

HSBC

25
10
HSBC C.1.
6,186,000 9.36 2014 7,501,000

9.96 85,142 2014 39,145

1.0200 2014 0.9900
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29
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2,281,564

4,217

HSBC

3,400,268

23,029

2,493,681

3,867

4,712,397
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22,810 2014 23,007

2015 30

- 2,555 2,555

2014 30

4,718 4,718
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2015 30
A+ 2014 A+
HSBC
2015 31 Aa3 2014 Aa3
HSBC
C.l.
2015 30 90
2015 30
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 1 - Special Investment 14
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 2 - Special Investment 12
26
2014 30 90
2014 30
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 1 - Special Investment 17
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 2 - Special Investment 14
31
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HSBC
2015 4 30
(2014 :110.10%)

Aderans - Common Stock 40,000 -* -

AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 1 1,570 2,584 3.91

AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 1 - Special 9 14 0.03

Investment

AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 2 2,253 3,706 5.61

AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 2 - Special 7 12 0.02

Investment

Beach Point Total Return Offshore Fund Il - IS Series V 01 Nov 4,281 6,311 9.55

2007 GSY

CQS Directional Opportunities Feeder Fund Ltd. - Class B USD 1,742 8,760 13.25

Shares Non New Issues

D.E. Shaw Composite International Fund - April 1st Subscription 1 13,916 21.05

Davidson Kempner International (BVI) Ltd. - Class C Tranche 4 41,174 5,038 7.62

Davidson Kempner International Ltd. - Class C Tranche 1 Series 1 358 178 0.27

Jan 12 - GSY

Davidson Kempner International Ltd. - Class C Tranche 3 Series 1 22,610 3,713 5.62

Jan 13 - GSY

Marcato International Fund Class B - Sub Class Bl Initial Series 3,813 6,849 10.36

Paulson Enhanced Ltd. - Class BR Series 081401 HH 25,000 2,552 3.86

Starboard Value and Opportunity Fund Ltd. - Class A Series 92 2,001 4,925 7.45

Third Point Offshore Fund Ltd. - Class E - GSY 2,842 994 1.50

Third Point Offshore Fund Ltd. - Class F - Series 1 3,410 1,166 1.76

Third Point Ultra Ltd. - Class C - GSY 419 2,199 3.33

Third Point Ultra Ltd. - Class C - Series 12 NI - GSY 556 646 0.98

Tyrus Capital Event Fund Ltd. - Class A USD - GSY 52,550 8,349 12.63
71,912 108.80

(2014 :110.10%) 71,912 108.80

(5,814) (8.80)
66,098 100.00
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2015 30 2014 30
HSBC 140.20 133.82
HSBC 132.77 126.65
2015 30 2014 30

0.00% 0.00%

100.00% 100.00%

100.00% 100.00%
2015 30 2014 30

59.70% 50.10%

31.50% 26.20%

8.80% 11.90%

- 11.80%

100.00% 100.00%
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2015 4 30
Starboard Value and Opportunity Fund Ltd. - Class A Series 92 2,001 5,000
Paulson Enhanced Ltd. - Class BR Series 081401 HH 25,000 2,500
Third Point Offshore Fund Ltd. - Class F - Series 1 3,410 1,123
Third Point Ultra Ltd. - Class C - Series 12 NI - GSY 556 618
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund Ltd. (The) - EUR Class S 3 4
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund Ltd. (The) - EUR Class S - GSY 21 2
Redwood Opportunity Offshore Fund Ltd. - Common Shares Series 45 7,525 9,660
Beach Point Total Return Offshore Fund Il - IS Series V 01 Nov 2007 GSY 2,453 3,546
Tyrus Capital Event Fund Ltd. - Class A USD - GSY 16,146 2,596
D_E. Shaw Composite International Fund - April 1st Subscription 1 1,800
Pershing Square International Ltd. - Class E Series 1R 768 1,769
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 1 1,067 1,748
Davidson Kempner International Ltd. - Class C Tranche 3 Series 1 Jan 13 - GSY 9,124 1,499
Third Point Offshore Fund Ltd. - Class F - Series 3 11,000 1,123
Marcato International Fund Class B - Sub Class Bl Initial Series 274 500
Steel Partners Japan Strategic Offshore Fund, Ltd. - Class A Series 155 SP2 636 297
Steel Partners Japan Strategic Offshore Fund, Ltd. 1 287
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund Ltd. (The) - USD Class S 1 80
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund Ltd. (The) - EUR Class S 4 52
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund Ltd. (The) - EUR Class S - GSY 231 28

2015 30
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HSBEC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

COMSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET STATEMENT AS AT 30 APRIL 2015

Mg at Mg oal
a0 April 2015 30 April 2014

Assals Notes  USS'000 US$000 US$'000 Us$'000
Paorifollo of invesiments 71812 82,938
Debtors [ 510 55
Cash and bank balances 7 23 23

S —:
Total asgels _ 72445 83,016
Liabililies
Croditors: amounts falling duo within ona
yaar B (6,347) {7,589
Total Liabilities {6347 (7,689)
Mot assels altibutabie o the holders of
redeamable particlpating units 66,088 75,327
The consolidated 1 ancltﬂmmrﬂs on pages 9 to 20 were approved by the manager, HSBC Management (Guernsoy)
Limited, on 26 2015 and were signed on its bahalf by:
Eta Charlas
&L_EL
Carl Rosumek B

The notes on pages 11 lo 20 form an integral part of these conselidated financial statoments.
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H3BC SPECIAL OPPORTURNITIES FUND

COMSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURN FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2015

Year Ended Yoar Ended
30 April 2015 20 April 2014
Motes  USE'000 USE000 USE000 UsS$'000

Income
Met capital gains 3 3,882 11,346
Finance costs: interest 11 (83) (33)
Operating expenses 4 {1,329) {1,985)
Mel expenses 1,414 2,034

Change in net assets atlribulable to the holders of

redeemable parlicipating units from Invastment aclivilies 2,468 9,312

All results are derived from continuing oparations.

COMSOLIDATED STATEMEMT OF MOVEMENT IM MET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE HOLDERS OF
REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING UNITS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2015

Year Ended Year Ended
30 April 2045 30 April 2014
LIS5000 US3'000 LS5000 US$000

Mal assels aliributable 1o the holdars of redeamabla

participating units at the start of the year 75,327 82,839
Movement due to issue and redemption of
redeemable parlicipating uniis:
Amounts receivadireceivable on issues 1,287 2,733
Less: Amounis paidipayable on redemplions (12,584) _(19,557)

(11,697) (16,.824)
Change in nel assels altributable (o the holders of
redeamable parlicipating unils from investmenl aclivilies 2468 9,312
Mel assels aftributable to the holders of redeamakble
participating units al (e end of the year 66,098 75,327

The notes on pages 11 1o 20 form an integral pard of these consolidated financial statements.
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HSBC SPECIAL OFPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIOATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
1 STRUCTURE OF THE FUND

HSBGC Speclal Opporiunities Fund (the “Trust™) is a sub-fund of HSBC Allernative Strategy Fund, a Guernsey unil
trugl scheme establishod as an umbrella fund which is authorised as a Class B Scheme under the Authorised
Collective Invesiment Schemas (Class B) Rules, 2013,

The Trust owns 100% of the wnlta in HSBC Special Opportunilies Investments Limited (the “Company™), a BVI
registarad company. Tha Trus! alss leaned menies te the Company to fund its investing activiies.

The Company owns lhe invesimenis listed in the Portfalio of Investmanis. The purpose of the Company is 1o ensure
that any withholding tax on distributions from such invesiments may be reclaimed.

These consalidated financlal sialements include all the assets and Habilities of the Trust and the Company (together
the “Fund™).

The Trust rogistered as an Allernative Investment Fund (AIF) with effect from 1 July 2014, with the Financial
Conduet Authority and the Commission de Surveillance du Seclor Financier. As a non-EEA AIF with a non-EEA
AIEM the Trust Is not authorised or regulated under AIFMD and consequenlly is not requived 1o have a depositary,

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policles have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered
material in relation 1o these consolidated financial statements:

Basis of accounting
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost cormention modified by the
ravalualion of Investments and financial Habilitles and in accordance with applicable United Kingdom Accounting

Standards and the Stalement of Recommended Praclica for Authorised Funds (the “SORP7) issued by Investment
Management Association in October 2010,

The consokidated financlal statements havae been prepared on a going concern basis.
Basis of censclidation

The consolidated financial stalements Include the results of the Trust and its wholly-owned subsidiary HSBC
Special Oppertunilies Investments Limited. The Manager doos nol consider the unconsolidated balance sheel of
the Trust to ba of any relevance as (he only reason for setling up the subsidiary company was for fiscal purposes.
Accordingly no unconsolldated balance sheet is presented In these consolidated financial statements.

Funclional and presentational currency

The funclional and preseniational currency is US Dollar bacause that is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Fund oporates,

Investments

Imvestments In investment funds are valued at the closing net assetf valus per units for the underlying invesiments
that the Fund hobds, as al 5 pm {Guemnsey tima) an the balance sheed date. Invesiments in underfying funds which
are nol quoted on a recognised stock exchange or other trading facility are valued at the nel assat values provided
by such enlilles or their administrators. These values may be unaudied or may themselves be estimates. In
addition, these entities or their administrators may not provide values al all or in a timely manner and, to the extent
thal values are not available, those investments will be valued by the Investment Advisor using valuation techniques
appropriate 1o those invesiments. In delermining fair value, the Investment Advisor takes inte consideration, whers
applicable, he impact of suspensien of redemptions, liguidation proceedings, invesiments in gide pockels and other
signiicant factors. The Direclors of the Manager have no reason lo believe that the valualions used are
unreasanabio.

Realisod and unrealised surpluses and deficits on investments are included on the consolidated stalament of todal
ralurn. Realised galns and losses on salos of securitles are delermined using the average cost method, Purchases
and salas of the investments are accounted for on a trade date plus one basis.
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue

Invesiment income and deposit interest are included in the consolidaled statement of lotal return on an accruals
basis, Al non-class specific income Is allocated to each unil class in proportion to the tolal net assals af the unit
class during the year. All class specific Income is allocated to the unit class to whick it ralatas,

Expenses

Expenses are included in the consofidated statement of total relurn on an accruals basis. All non-class specific
axpensos are allocated to each unil elass In proportion (o the lotal net assels of the unit class during the year, A
class specific oxpenses ate allocated to the unit class to which they relate.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing cosls arise from credil faciliies hold by the Fund. These costs are recognised in the consolidated
statement of tolal relurn on an accruals basis.

Uss of estimates and judgemaents

The prepatalion of consclidaled financial statements in accordance with the recognition and measuremant
principles of United Kingdom Accounting Standards requires managemant 1o make judgements, eslimates and
assumplions that affect the application of policies and the reparted amounts of assols and labilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of
incomo and exponses during tha year.

The eslimales and assoclated assumplions are based en hislorcal experlance and various other factors thal are
bolisved 1o ba reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basls for making the judgements
abaut carrying values of assels and llabiliies that are not readily apparent from oiher sourcas. Actual resulls could
differ from those astimates.

Fareign currency ransactions

Foreign currency transgetions are recorded at the rale of axchange ruling at the date of the transaction. Manatary
assels and Habilities denominated in forelgn currencies are translaled to US Dollars at the foroign currency closing
gxchange rale ruling at the balance sheel date, The Fund raports the reallsed exchange gain or loss as well as the
unrealised exchange appreciation or depreciation en nen-US Dollar denominated investments in the consolidated
statemont of iolal relurn, Any realised exchange gains of losses as well as unrealised appraciation or depreciation

arlsing from non-US Dollar denominated payables and recelvables and on foseign currency transaclions are
reflectad in the consclidated statermont of total return.

The unrelised appreciation or depreciation on open forward forelgn exchange conlracts is caleulated by reforence
io the diflerenco belween the contractad rale and the rate to close oul the contracl. Unrealised appreciation is
reporied as an assel and unreallsed depreciation is reporied as a lability In the consclidated balance sheet. All net
gains or losses on ferward foreign exchange contracts are recorded in the consofidated statemant of total return.
Cash
Cash comprises current deposits with banks.

Fi tal L

Under Financial Reporling Standard Mo, 1 (Revisad) the Fund is exampt from the requirement 1o prepara a cash
flow staternant as it complies wilh the condilions fer opan-ended invesiment funds.

85/209



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS (COMTINUED)

2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Eormalion gxpense
In accordance wilh the Fund's Praspectus the formation cosls will be amorlized aver a paricd not exceading five
yaars or such shorler period as the Manager may determing. This treatment is in line with the Prospectus but not in
line with Uniled Kingdom Accounting Standards. This deparure from Unlted Kingdem Aceounting Standards does
not have @ materal impact on the results reportad in the consolidated financial statements.

in i

Raedesmable parlicipating unils are redeamable at the oplion of the hotder of redeemable paricipating units and will
be dlassified as financial Rabililies.

The nel galnfoss on financial assals and labilities are disclosad in the consolidated statement of fotal refwrn.
Realised gains and losses on the sale of securities are delermined using the average cost methed.

3 MET CAPITAL GAINS

Year Ended Year Ended
30 April 2015 30 ppril 2014
USE000 USE000
Med realised gains on non-derivalive invesimeants 6,123 4,102
Unrealised {losses)igains on non-derivative invesiments {1.409) 6,924
Met realised (losses)gains an derivative investments (823) 361
Unrealized gainsi{losses) on dedvalivi invesiments a1 {at)
Telal net cagital gains on investments T 3pez 11,346
4 OPERATING EXPENSES
Year Endad Yaar Endod
30 April 2015 30 April 2014
USE'000 US§000
Payable to the Manager and ils associatas:
Managomen! fees {1,178) [1,298)
Performance foes (5) (S48)
{1,183) {1,844)
Payable to the Trustee and ils associales:
Trusles lees (™) {75
Other expansas:
Audit feos {19) {24)
Olher sundry expenses (56} {48}
- (75) {72}
Total expenses {1,329) {1,985)
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5 MANAGEMENT, TRUSTEE AND INVESTMENT ADVISER AGREEMENTS

Undar the lerms of a trust deed dated B Febsuary 2007, as amended from time to time (the “Trust Deed’). HSBC
Managament (Guernsey) Limiled is the Manager of the HSBC Alternative Stralegy Fund, which includos the Fund.
In accordance with the Prospectus the Manager is entitied to receive a fes of 1.65% of the nel assel valua per
annum for the US Dollar Class and the Euro Class. The Management fee for the year amounted to UIS$1,177.500
[2014: US§1,205,678). The fes outstanding al year and was USSNIl (2014: USSNI.

Under the terms of the Trusi Deed, the Manager appointed HSBC Alternative Invesiments Limited as the
Investment Adviser of the HSBC Allernative Strategy Fund. In accordance with the Prospectus the Manager is
enfitled to recolve a performance fee if the percenlage increase in tho nel assel value per units al the relevant
valuation point comparad with the net asset value per units at tha start of the current perfermance period axcoods
the calculatad relurn on the ralovant index (the “Index Relurn™) and the nel asset value per unils at the start of the
parformance period Is not less than the net asset value per unils al the end of any previous performance period.
Tha Index. Retum is calculated as the percenlage ncrease of an imputed investment in the index aver the
performance poriod, including appropriate compounding effects where applicabla, with tha indox baing wpdaled in
line with prevailing markel interast rates as al the last valuation point in March, June, Soplembaer and Decambar,
Performance Fae will Ba 10% of new "axcass” value over tha Index of the applicable Unit class. The performance
fe for the year amounted to US$5,340 (2014: US$547 673). The fee oulstanding al the year end was US3138,741
(2044: USH161,142).

Under the terms of the Trusl Deed, HSBC Private Bank (C.1) Limited Is the Trusles of the HSBC Altarnative
Strategy Fund, In accordance wilh the Frospeclus the Trustes receives a fae of 0.10% of the net asset value per
annum. The Trustes fea for the year amounted to US$T1,364 (2014: USE78,548). The fee culstanding at the year
and was USENI (2014; USENI).

DEBTORS Mg al As al

30 Aprl 2015 a0 April 2014

USE000 LISE000

Sales awalling setarmant 445 55
Unrealized gains on forward foraign exchange contracts

(see Nole 12) G5 . -

510 55

CASH AND BANK BALANCES Asal As al

a0 April 2015 A0 April 2014

US$000 US§'000

Cash and bank balances 23 23

Cash balances are held by Slate Street Custodial Sarvieos {iratand) Limited (the *Cuslodian®) and HSBC Privale
Bark (C.1.} Limiled {the “Trustee™). The Fund’s cash is maintained wilhin the Cusiodian's sub-custodial network in
segregated accounts. The credit raling of State Stroel Corporation, the paranl company of the Custodian, at 30 April
2015 was A+ (2014: A+). The credit raling of HSBC Holdings ple, the ulimate parent of the Trusiee, at 30 April
2015 was Aad (30 April 2014: Aad) as rated by Moody's Ralings Agency.

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR As at As al

30 Agril 2015 30 April 2014

US$000 US%'000

Loans payable (sea Mata 11) {6,186) {7.501)

Accrued Porformance fees {140} {161}
Unrealised loss on forward fonelgn exchange contracts

(see Mola 12) - [28)

Other credilors (21} ) {1

(6,347 {7,689)
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HEBC SPECIAL OPFORTUNITIES FUND

HOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (COMTINUED)

9 TAXATION STATUS

The umbrella fund, HSBC Altarnative Stralegy Fund, I8 exempt from Guemsoy income lax ender the Income Tax
{Exempl Bodies) {Guemsey) Ordinances 1889 and is charged an annual exemplion loe of GBP1,200 (2014: GBP
&00).

10 REDEEMABLE PARTICIFATING UNITS IMISSUE

Taotal

US Dollar Ewroy Murnber of

Class Class unis in Issuwe

Redeomable Participating umits in issue at 1 May 2014 527,583.44 27 ,071.90 554,655.34

Issued on Subscriptions 9,301.42 - 9,391.42
Redemplions (83,731.66)  (9,915.76) (93,647.42)

Redesmable Participating unils In lssue at 30 April 2045 453,243.20 17,156,114 470,380.34

Tolal

Us Daollar Eura Mumbar of

Clasz Class units in Issue

Redesmable Paricipating units in issue al 1 May 2013 640,900,683 43,2250 GE4,125.73

Issued on Subscriplions 20,856.13 - 20,856.13

Redamptions (134,173.32)  (16,153.20) (150,326.52)

Redeamable Paricipating wnits in issue atl 30 April 2014 527 58344 2707190 554,655.34

The Fund's nat assel values per sharalunit are disclosed on page 23.

All seres of units rank equally for allecation of income and expenses and have the same rights allached to them
cdier than management fee rates as noted in Nole 5.

The Managaer may limit the number of unils in the Trust which may be redeemed on any dealing day to not more
lhan 15% of the tofal number of unils in issue immedialely before such dato. Any redemplion of units during the first
12 calendar manths from the date of subscriplion shall be subject to a redemption fee payable to the Fund and
aqual o 5% of redemption proceeds. Therealler the redemption fee shall be 0%.

A maximum initial charge of up to 3% of subgcriplion monies may be charged on al classes at the Manager's
discration.

U Doltar Euro
Class Class Total
USg000 USS000 LS5'000
Ml Assels at 30 April 2015 63,544 2,554 66,093
et Assels al 30 April 2014 70,601 4,726 75,327
Met Azsels at 30 April 2013 VB 458 6,381 82,839

11 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
HSBC Private Bank (C.1.) Limited acts as Trustea to the Fund,

Tha Fund also placed money on deposit wilth the Trustea on a regular basis throughout the yaar, The interest rale
racaivad is consistent with that received on a normal commercial deposit,

HSBC Allernativa Investimeanis Limited (the ‘Invastment Adviser’) is wholly owned by paries thal are affiliated with
the Manager and the Trustee.
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HESBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
11 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Loan

The Fund has the ability to borrow up 1o 25% of its nel assel value for a period of up to one month 1o cover 2 cash
shortfall caused by mismatched selilement dates on purchase and sale transactions of Invesiment Funds; &nd for a
porad of up to three manths 1o fund redemplions; and for invastmant purposes, subjeet 1o a maximum of 10%: of the
Fund's nat asset value, to facilate addifonal investment In Investment Funds. There were no breaches of these
borrowing restriclions by the Fund during the year.

HSBC Privale Bank (C.1.) Limited provided credit facilities 1o the Fund during the yoar. Al tho year end Ihe koan
outstanding was US$8,186,000 or 9.36% of ts Ne! Asset Value (2014: US57,501,000 or 9.06% of its Nel Asset
Valua). The Interest paid during the year was USS85,142 {2014; US$39,145). The inleras! rate prevaiing at the
balance sheel date |s 1,0200% (2014: 0.8900%). The laan |s repayable on demand and there were no breaches of
Ihase borrowing resirictions by the Fund during the year.

There were no other related party transactions for the year other than fees pald to the Manager, Trustes and
Investmant Advisor as oullined in Mate 5.

12 FORWARD FOREIGM EXCHANGE CONTRACTS

Assals may be denaminated in currencies other than the functional currency of each unit class and certain currancy
axposure will be hedged back to the rolevant unit class currency. Hedging for this purpose may be by means of
forward forelgn exchange contracts or oplions on such contracts of by using such other dervalive instruments as
may be available and having the same or similar effect. The Invesiment Adviser retains the right to vary the policy
on currency hedging at lis absolule discrelion. All costs of such hedging will ba mat by the Unitholders of the
relevant unit class only. .

The following ferward foreign exchange contracts wera cutstanding at 30 April 2015 in respect of the hedging of
thee HSBC Special Opportunilies Fund - Eure Class.

Maturity Amount Bought Amount Sold Countarparty Unrealised
Gain/{Loss)
uUss

29-May-15 EUR2,281 564 US52,493,681 State Straot Bank 65,513
29-May-15 USE4 217 EUR3.BEV State Straet Bank . {120)
65,393

Met unrealised gain on forward forelgn exchange conlracts 65,393

The following forward forsign exchange contracts were oulstanding at 30 April 2014 in respect of the hedging of
the HSBC Speclal Opportunities Fund - Euro Class.

Maturity Amount Bought Amoaunt Sold Countarparty Unraalised
Loss

uss

31-May-14 EUR3, 400,265 Uss4 712307 Siate Stresi Bank {25,323)
31-May-14 EURZ3,029 U5531,934 Slate Streel Bank (180}
jgﬁ 513!

Mel unrealised loss on forward foreign exchange conlracts 5_25 E‘Ia—i
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HEBC SPECIAL OPFORTUNITIES FUND

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
13 FINAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Market Risk Oversight

The Manager takes a mulb-tiered approach to risk management, with the understanding and management of risk
embeadded in the manager selection and porifolic management processes, logether with porfolio overaighl and
mignitoring in accordance with Fund investrment reslriclions, as listed In the relevant Fund section in the prospecius,

In manager selection, due diigence revolves arcund understanding whather the risks a hedge fund manager takes
In the pursull of relumns are appropriale and conirolled. Complomenting this investment focused due diligence, is a
separale operational due diligence procass, which evaluales the business and operaticnal (non-investmant) risks of
a hedge fund and seeks Lo avold hedge funds where inadequale siruclure or process could compromise an
Inwestment,

In portfolic management, ensuring that porifolios are appropriately diversified is paramount. In ordar 1o assess rigk
and portfolio diversification, bolh gualitative and guantitative lechniques are used, including roturns and axposure-
basad analysis.

The Manager regularly monilors each Fund's compliance with tha investmen! resldctions delailed in the Prospeclus,
and retains ovarsight of all aspects of the risk managemen process,

The main risks arising from the Fund's financial inslrurnents are markel risk, credit risk and liquidity risk,

Market risk

Market risk arises mainly from uncerlainty abowt future prices of financial Instruments held, |t represonls the
potential loss the Fund might suffer throwgh holding market positions in the face of price movements. The
Investment Adviser considers the assel allocation of the porliclio in order to minimise the risk associated with
parlicular countries or Industry seclors whilst confinuing lo follow the Fund's Invesiment objective.

Market risk embodies the potantial for bolh lessas and gains and Includes currency risk, interast rate risk and price
rigk. The profitabiiity of the Fund's investment programme depends (o a greal extent on corred! assessments of the
future course of price movemants of securiliss and equilies and other investmenls. There can be no assurance that
the Manager will be able to accurately predict these price movements. The securities markels have In recent years
been characterised by great volatilily and unprediclabllity. With respect 1o the investment siratogy into which the
Invesiment Adviser has invested the Fund's asseis, there is always some, and from time fo Bme a significant,
degree of markel risk,

Dedails of the Fund's investmen! portfolio at the balance sheat date are disclosed in the Porifolio of Investments
included on pages 23 and 24,

{a) Other prica risk

Prica risk is lha risk that the valua of tha investmenits will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices {other
than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether caused by faclors specific to an Individual
investirment, ils issuer or all lactors affecting all invastments traded in the markel.

The Fund is required to comply with the standard Investment and borrowing resiriclions as defined In the
Prospacius. The Fund's investment restriclions are moniloded on a ragular basis by the Trustee of the Fuad and
reviewad guariery by the Manager. There are specific guidelines in place for monitering and reporling breaches,
and situations where holdings come close (o rastriction lovels,

(B) Interest rate risk
The majorily of the Fund’s financial assels are invesimenis In investment funds which neither pay Interest nor have

a malwrily date. The underying funds the Fund invesls in are exposed to interest rate rsk; howover, the Fund
milligates this rsk by diversifying its investments,

The Fund hags borrowed USH 6,186,000 at year end (2014: US37.501,000). To minimise ils interest rale risk the
Fund enters In floating rate loan agreements. The inlerest rale prevailing at the balance sheel dale is 1.0200%
(2014: 0.9900%).

The Fund Is exposed to variable interest rates on cash and bank balances of US$22 810 (2014: US3$23,007L
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
13 FIMANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Market risk (continued)

{c) Foroign currency risk

The Fund may invest in financial instruments and enter Into transactions denominated in curencies other than ils
furetianal currency. Censegquently the Fund s exposed to risks that the exchange rate af its currency ralative lo
other foreign currancies may change In a manner that has an adverse effect on tho value of that portion of the
Fund's assets of Habililies denominated in currencias other than US Dollars.

The Funds currancy risk is managed on a menthly basis by the Invesiment Advisor in accordance wilh policies and
procedures in place, All currancy exposura at the portfolio level is hedged into the currency of the relevant unit class
on a monthly basis, using standard monthly forwards. The Fund's overall currency positions and exposures ang
manitorad an a manthly basis by the Manager.

The Fund also offers redeemable paricipating units denominated in Euro oxposing the unitholders to fosaign
currency risk. This risk is mitigated on behall of the unilhalders by the Fund antering into forward foraign exchange
eoniracts as deseribod further in this note,

The following lable sels out the Fund's total exposure to forelgn currency risk and (he net exposure 1o the foreign
currencies at 30 April 2015,

Monetary Assets
Currency and Liabilitias Total Forward FX et
USE000 LIS5000 LUS5000
Ewrg - 2,555 2,555
The fallowing lable sets oul the Fund's lotal exposure to foreign currency risk and the nel exposure lo the foraign
gurrancias at 30 April 2014,
Monatary Assels
Currency and Liabilities Tatal Forward FX Met
USE000 USE000 LS3000
Eurg - 4,18 4,718
Crodit risk

Cradit risk is e fisk that a counterparty 1o & financial instrument will fail to discharge an abligation or commitment
that it has enterad into with the Fund.

The Fund is exposed to credit risk on parties with whom it frades and also bears the risk of sedtlament dofault.

Cradil risk arising on transacticns with brokers relates 1o transactions awalting seltlement. Risk releling to unsatifed
{ransactions is considered small due to the shorl setllament pericd invelved and the high cradit qualily of the
hrokers used. The Fund monflors the cradit rating and financial positions of the brokers used to further mitigate the
cradil risk of undarlying investmenis.

Substantially, all of the assets of the Fund are held by Stale Street Custodial Services (freland) Limited (iha
“Custodian”). Bankruplcy or insolvency of the Cuslodien may cause the Fund's rights with respect 1o securilies held
by the Cuslodian to be delayed or limited. The Fund monitors its risk by monitoring the cradit quality and financial
posilions of the Custodian the Fund uses. The credit raling of State Street Corporation, the parent company af the
Custodian at 30 April 2015 was A+ (2014; A+)

The credit rafing of HSBC Holdings ple, the ullimate parent of the Trustes, al 31 March 2015 was Aad (31 March
2014: Aa3d) as rated by Moody's Ratings Agancy.

In addiion the Fund has indirect axposure 1o credit risk theough the eredil risk held by the underlying fund
Investments.

Tha Fund minimlses concentrations of credit risk by undertaking fransactions with a large number of countarparties.

91/209



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HSBC SPECIAL OPFORTUNITIES FLIMD

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {CONTINUED)
Liguidity risk

The main liabilitles of the Fund are the redemption of any units that Investors wish to redeern and the loan
repayable to HSBC Private Bank (C.1.) Limited, The risk s that the Fund might not be able (o liquidate nvestmant
positions in order 1o repay amounts demanded by its Unitholdears or its lendear.

The Fund's liquidity risk is managed on an ongoing basis by the Invesiment Adviser in accordance with policies and
proceduras in placa. It is not the normal policy of the Fund 1o invest direclly in funds, limited parnaerships or ofher
wehlcles thal have na liquidity. The Fund's overall liguidity risks are monitored on @ monthly Basis by the Manager,

The Fund's invesimant reslrichons, as defined in the Prospecles, some of which pertain to the management of
liquidity risk and concentrations therecl are monitored on a conlinuous basls by the Trustee of the Fund, There are
specific guidelines in place for monitoring and raporling breaches, and siluations where holdings coma close 1o

regiriction lavels.
All of the Funds liabililies are payable wilhin one year and the loan is repayable on demand.

Al the 30 Aprl 2015, the feflowing investes funds had a redemplion percd of greater than 90 days in place o
radeam its inwvesiment holdings.

Markat Valua at
30 April 2015
LUSE000

AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXXX Series 1 - Special Investment 14
AG Super Fund International Ltd, - Class XXXX Series 2 - Speclal Investment 12
26

Al the 30 April 2014 the following investea funds had a redemplion period of greater than 90 days in place lo
redaam ils invesimant holdings,

Market Value at
30 April 2014
UsSs$'o00

AG Super Fund International Lid, - Class XXXX Series 1 - Special Investmant 17
AG Super Fund Internalional Lid, - Class XXX Saries 2 - Special Investment 14
31

Leverage

Where a fund permils leverage, the underlying volatility of the fund will be significantly greater than would olherwise
have baen the case without the parmifted leverage. Whilst this gives a fund tha ability to participate in higher returns
agsociated with greater exposura, It also gives a fund exposure o increased losses whene nmarkets in general and a
fund in particular, invest in assels whare prices suffer declines.

Certain investment funds In which a fund may inwest use malerial levels of leverage and are nol imiled in eilher
their borrowing capacity nor in their level of margin commilment. The tofal valua of poasitions held by these funds
may excaed their Net Asset Values, The leverage acquired offers the possiblity of achieving a much greater overall

return, but also increases the Fund's velatilily and carries the risk of tolal loss of the amount inveslod. Please rafar
to note 11 for detalls on borrowings of the fund,
14 DISTRIBUTION POLICY

The Managor does nel recommend the paymeant of a dividend. All income will be “rolled-up”, and income will nol ba
distribuled but will be retained in the Fund and reflected in the net asset value per unit,
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
15 FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE

The following foreign exchange rale was used to translale assels and liabilities into the roporting currency (US
Dallars):

As al s at
30 Apdil 2018 30 April 2014
Eura 0.6918 0.7254

16 COMBMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Fund had no commitment or contingent liabifties as at 30 April 2015 and 30 April 2014,
17 SIGHIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR
The Trusl registered as a non-EEA Allernalive Investment Fund (AIF} with effect from 1 July 2014,

PricewaterhouseCoopers C LLP took over as auditors of the Trust from KPMG Channel Islands Limited during the
year.

Thore were no other significant events during the year which require disclosure in the consclidated financial
statomanls.

18 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There were no signiiicant events subsequent io the year end date that raquise adustiment to, or disclosure in these
consolidated financial statements.
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HEBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS AS AT 30 APRIL 2015 (UNAUDITED)

Security Descriptien Holding
USD (2014: 110.10%)

Aderans - Comman Slock 40,000
AG Super Fund International Lid, - Class XXXX Saries 1 1,570
AG Super Fund International Lid, - Class XXXX Serles 1 -

Special Investment ]
AG Super Fund International Lid, - Class XXXX Serigs 2 2,253
AG Super Fund International Lid. - Class XXXX Saries 2 -

Special Invastment 7
Beach Point Total Redurn Offshore Fund [l = 1S Series W 01 Nov

2007 GBY 4,281
CQS Directional Opportunities Feeder Fund Lid, - Class B USD

Shares Mon Mew lssues 1,742
D.E. Shaw Composite International Fund - April 18t Subscriplion 1
Cavidson Kempner Intermational (BV1) Lid. - Class C Tranche 4 41,174

Davidson Kempner Inlarnational Lid. - Class C Tranche 1 Series
1Jan 12 - GSY 358
Davidson Kempnar International Lid. - Class C Tranche 3 Saries

1 Jan 13 - GBY 22,610
Marcato Intarnational Fund Class B - Sub Class B1 Initial Series 3813
Paulson Enhanced Lid. - Class BR Saries 081401 HH 25,000
Starboard Value and Opportunily Fund Lid. - Class A Serias 92 2,001
Third Point Offshare Fund Lid. - Class E - GSY 2,542
Third Paint Offshare Fund Lid. - Class F - Series 1 3,410
Third Point Uitra Lid, - Class C - GSY 419
Thirdh Point Witra Ltd, - Class C - Seres 12 NI - GSY 556
Tyrus Capilal Event Fund Lid, - Class A USD - GSY 52,560

Portfolio of Invesiments (2014: 110,10%)
Met current liabililies (including dervatives)
Total net assets

*Mo markel value is shown for these securities as the value |3 less than US$1,000,

Mot asset value per unit

HSBC Speclal Opporlunities Fund - US Dollar Class
H3BC Special Opporlunities Fund - Euro Class

Partfolio classification

Securilies with an official stock exchange listing
Unlisted securities
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Market value % of total
Uss'000 nat assets
2,084 3.94
14 0,03
3,708 561
12 0.02
6,311 9,55
8,760 13.25
13,916 21.05
5,038 762
178 .27
3,73 b.62
6,849 10.36
2,552 3.86
4,925 T45
a4 1.50
1,166 1.76
2,194 333
B4B 0.28
8,348 12.63
a1z 108.80
71,012 108,80
{5814y {B.80)
66,008 100.00
As at As al
30 Apdl 2015 30 April 2014
US5140.20 Us$133.82
EUR132.77 EUR126.65
As al As at
30 April 20158 30 Apeil 2014
0.00% 0.00%
100.00% _100.00%
100.00% 100.00%
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

PORTEOLIO OF INVESTMENTS AS AT 30 APRIL 2015 (UNAUDITED)

Sector Allocation

As at As al

30 April 2015 30 April 2014

i 59,70% 50.10%

Event Drivan o

31.50% 25,2

e B.B0% 11.90%

Cradit Long/Short i bt
Cistrassed 100.00% 100.00%
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUMNITIES FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT PORTFOLIO CHANGES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2015* {UNAUDITED)

Purchases
Descriplian Mominal Cosl
USS000
Starbeard Value and Opportunily Fund Lid. - Class A Series 92 2,001 5,000
Paulson Enhanced Ltd, - Class BR Sarfes 081401 HH 25,000 2,500
Third Point Offshore Fund Lid, - Class F - Series 1 3410 1.123
Third Point Ultra Lid. - Class C - Series 12 NI - G3Y 556 618
Bluabay Valus Recovery Fund Lid, (Tha) - EUR Class S 3 4
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund Lid, (The) - EUR Class S - GSY 21 2
Sales
Description Meminal Froceads
US3'000
Redwood Opportunity Odfshore Fund Lid. - Common Sharos Series 45 7525 9,660
Beach Point Tofal Relurm Offshore Fund Il - 15 Series V' 01 Mov 2007 GSY 2,453 3,546
Tyrus Capital Event Fund Ltd. - Class AUSD - GSY 16,146 2,594
D.E. Shaw Compesite International Fund - April 151 Subscription 1 1,800
Parshing Square Inlernational Lid. - Class E Serles 1R =] 1,769
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class XXX Series 1 1,067 1,748
Davidson Kempner International Lid. - Class C Tranche 3 Series 1 Jan 13 - GSY 9,124 1,499
Third Point Offshore Fund Lid. - Class F - Sorles 3 11,000 1,123
Marcale Infernational Fund Class B - Sub Class B1 Initial Series 274 500
Steal Partners Japan Strategic Offshore Fund, Ltd. - Class A Seres 155 5P2 636 297
Steal Partners Japan Strategic Offshore Fund, Lid, 1 287
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund Lid. (The) - USD Class S 1 B8O
Bluebay Value Recovery Fund Ltd. (Tha) - EUR Class S 4 52
Blusbay Value Recovery Fund Lid, (The) - EUR Class 5 - GSY M 28

* Significant portfofio changes are defined as the value of purchases or sales of a securly exceeding 2% of the net
assels of the Trust al the start of the year. Listed above are lolal purchases and iolal sales during the year ended 30
Agpril 2015,
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HSEC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

INFORMATION ON HSEC ALTERNATIVE STRATEGY FUND

HSBC Allernative Strategy Fund is an umbrella unit trust comprising the following sub funds and classes (as at 30 Agril
2015

HSBC Special Opportunilies Fund - US Dollar Class
HSBC Special Opportunilies Fund - Eure Class

collectively known as the HSBG Special Opportunities Funds
HSBC Cradit Market Opportunities Fund — US Dollar Class
HSBC Cradit Market Opporlunities Fund - Euro Class
HSBC Cradit Market Opporiuniles Fund — Instiutional Class (U3 Dodlar)
HSEC Credit Market Opparlunities Fund — US Dellar R Class

collectively known as the HSBC Cradit Market Opportunities Funds

Unitholdars should note that coples of the latest financlal statements of aach of the above Funds are availablo
from the Manager free of eharge on requast.
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2015 30
2015 30 2014 30
43,805 5,308 55,386 6,712
168 20 101 12
20 2 239 29
188 23 340 4
43,993 5,331 55,726 6,753
(3,434) (416) (2,962) (359)
(3,434) (416) (2,962) (359)
40,559 4,915 52,764 6,394
HSBC
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HSBC
2015 30
2015 2014 30
379 46 6,091 738
11 32) 4 (24) ®)
(766) (93) (1,207) (146)
(798) ©7) (1,231) (149)
(419) (1) 4,860 589
2015 30
2015 2014 30
52,764 6,394 61,182 7,414
2,921 354 6,766 820
(14,707) (1,782) (20,044) (2,429)
(11,786) (1,428) (13,278) (1,609)
(419) (1) 4,860 589
40,559 4,915 52,764 6,394
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HSBC

HSBC 2013

HSBC

HSBC

2011 10 30

HSBC CM
100

AIF 2014 EEA AIFM EEA AIF
AIFMD

2010 10
SORP

HSBC CM
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2015 30 2014 30
3,014 3,967
(1,449) 1,694
(1,339) 483
153 (53)
379 6,091
2015 30 2014 30
(687) (903)
- (161)
(687) (1,064)
(46) (59)
24) 24)
(12) (15)
(38) (45)
41 -
(33) (84)
(766) (1,207)
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2007 HSBC
1.65
0.90
0.65 686,954 2014 902,727
2014
HSBC HSBC

12
2014 160,686
40,760 2014 54,257
HSBC C.1.
0.10 45,822
2014 59,363 2014
2015 30 2014 30
26 64
12 121
21 37
168 101
2015 30 2014 30
20 239
2015

30 A+ 2014 A+
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2015 30 2014 30
(3,228) (2,720)
(54)
12 31)
(206) (157)
(3.434) (2,962)
HSBC 1989
1,200
313,555.48 64,106.91 35,502.94 13,681.86 426,847.19
7,279.50 - 12,527.15 - 19,806.65
(97,684.49) (3,726.08) (13,050.01) (3,472.85) (117,933.43)
223,150.49 60,380.83 34,980.08 10,209.01 328,720.41
400,468.93 67,297.24 61,833.94 529,600.11
18,058.15 21,988.43 20,861.86 60,908.44
(104,971.60) (25,178.76) (26,331.00) (7,180.00) (163,661.36)
313,555.48 64,106.91 35,502.94 13,681.86 426,847.19
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15
2011 10 30 HSBC
HSBC 2011 10 30
100 100
2015 30 27,192 7,504 4,734 1,129 40,559
2014 30 37,654 7,795 5,840 1,475 52,764
2013 30 44,664 7,553 8,965 - 61,182
* 2013 31
11
HSBC C.l1.
HSBC
6 25
10
HSBC C.l1.
3,228,000 7.96% 2014 2,720,000
5.16% 32,468 2014 24,331

1.0200% 2014 0.9900%

107/209



12

2015

2015
2015

2014

2014
2014

13

30

29
29

30

30
30

HSBC

4,206,293
13,063

HSBC

4,205,042
28,291

4,597,352
14,247

5,827,725
39,231
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120,780
405
121,185

(31,205)
(234)
(31,439)
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20,213 2014 238,769
3,228,000 2014 2,720,000
1.0200%
2014 0.9900
2015 30
- 4,733 4,733
2014 30

- 5,836 5,836
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2014

C.1.

2014

30

A+

2015
Aa3

30

HSBC

Aa3
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2015 30
C.1.

HSBC



14

2015 30

AG Super Fund International Ltd. — Class YYY, Series 1
AG Super Fund International Ltd. — Class YYY, Series 2
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class YYY, Series 4
CQS ABS Feeder Fund Ltd. - Class B

2014 30

AG Super Fund International Ltd. — Class YYY, Series 1
AG Super Fund International Ltd. — Class YYY, Series 2
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class YYY, Series 4
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90
2015 30

151

9

112
9,847
10,119

90
2014 30

256

11
172
439

11
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2015 30
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EEA
2015 30
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2015 30 2014 30
0.8918 0.7254
0.6469 0.5948
30
AlIF 2014
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HSBC
2015 4 30
(2014 :104.97%)
AG Super Fund International Ltd. — Class YYY, Series 1 126 151 0.37
AG Super Fund International Ltd. — Class YYY, Series 2 5 9 0.02
AG Super Fund International Ltd. — Class YYY, Series 3 4,221 5,796 14.29
AG Super Fund International Ltd. — Class YYY, Series 4 79 112 0.28
Capeview Recovery Fund — Class C U/1 10,661 3,674 9.06
CQS ABS Feeder Fund Ltd. — Class B 1,773 9,847 24.27
JPS Credit Opportunities Fund (Cayman) Ltd. — Series A USD 6,973 8,593 21.19
— Series 07-2012
King Street Europe Ltd. NYKSE — Class A, Series 2 55,026 7,782 19.19
0Z Europe Overseas Fund Il Ltd. — Tranche L Prime 5,730 7,841 19.33

Restricted No Special Investments Class

43,805 108.00
(3,246) (8.00)
40,559 100.00
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2015 30 2014 30
HSBC 121.86 120.09
HSBC 124.28 121.60
HSBC 120.68 119.32
HSBC 110.56 107.83
2015 30 2014 30

22.48% 17.76%

77.52% 82.24%

100.00% 100.00%
2015 30 2014 30

17.80% 27.90%

50.40% 39.20%

31.80% 32.90%

100.00% 100.00%
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2015 4 30

CQS ABS Feeder Fund Limited — Class B 1 2
Halcyon Offshore Asset-Backed Value Fund Ltd. — Initial Series Restricted Class 2,381 5,215
0Z Europe Overseas Fund Il Ltd. — Tranche L Prime Restricted No Special 2,368 3,100
Investments Class

King Street Europe Ltd. - NYKSE Class A, Series 7 17,581 2,500
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class YYY, Series 3 1,279 1,750
Class

CQS ABS Feeder Fund Limited — Class B 92 500
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class YYY, Series 1 39 50
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class YYY, Series 4 20 29
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class YYY, Series 2 2 3

20

116/209



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HSBC CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES FUND

COMSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 30 APRIL 2015

As al As al
30 April 2015 30 April 2014

Moles UsS$'000  USH000 USS000 USE000
Assols
Portfolio of invesimants 43 805 55,386
Deblors & 168 101
Cash and bank balances 7 20 238

188 340

Total assels 43,993 55,726
Liabilitias
Craditors: amounts falling dug within cne year 8 434y 2,962
Tetal Liabililies 3,434 __[(2982)
Net assels allributable to the holders of
redesmable participating wnils 40,559 52,784

The consolidated financlal slatements on pages 9 to 20 were approved by the Manager, HSBC Management (Guarnsey)

Limited, on 2%

L2

“Kate Charles

&=l

Carl Rosumek

The notes on pages 11 to 20 farm an intagral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Yaa 2015 and were signed on its behalf by:

117/209



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HEBC CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES FUND

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF TOTAL RETURN FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2015

Year endad Year anded
30 April 2015 30 April 2014
Moles uUssooo  US3000 US$000  USE000
Ineome
Mat capital gaing 3 s &,001
Finance costs: Inlerast 1 (32) (24)
Operating expanses 4 (766) (1209}
Met expenses ) (198} 1,231
Change in net assels aliibutable to the holders of redesmable
participating units from investment activities (19} — L BE0

All results derive from continuing operations.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN WET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE HOLDERS OF
REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING UNITS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2015

Year ended Year anded
A0 April 2018 30 April 2014
USE'000 USS000 USH'000  USH'000

Met assats allributable 1o the holders of redeemabla

participaling unils al the start of the year 52,764 61,182
Movemnaenl due to issue and redemplion of radeemable
participaling units;
Amounts recelivedirecalvable on issues 2921 6,766
Less: amounts paidipayable on redemptions (14,707) (20,044

{11,7886) (13,278)
Change in net assets atbributable to the holders of
redeematle parlicipating units from investment activilies 419 _ 4.BEO
Met assels allributable to the holders of redeamable
participating units at the end of the year 40,559 52,764

Tha notes on pages 11 to 20 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statloments.
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HSBC CREDIT MARKET QPPORTUNITIES FUND

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 STRUCTURE OF THE FUND

HSBC Cradit Market Opportunities Furd (the "Trust™) B a sub-lund of HSBC Alternalive Strategy Fund, a Gueinsay
unit trust scheme established as an umbrella fund which is authorised as a Class B Schame under the Authorised
Collective Investmenl Schames (Class B) Rules, 2013,

The Trust was formerly known as the HSBC Distrassed Markets Fund. The Trust was renamed on the 30 Oclober
2011, due to a change in the Investment focus of the Trusk. This resulted In other changes to the Trust's schemea
particulars.

Tha Trust awns 100% of the shares in HSBG CM Opparlunily Limited {the "Company”), a BV registered company.
The Trust also loaned monies 1o the Company o fund its investing aclivities.

The Company owns the investments isted in the Porfolio of Invesimonts, The purpese of the Company is Lo ansure
Ihat any withhalding tax cn distributions from such investments may be reclaimed.

Thesa consolidated financial statememts include all the assets and liabilities of the Trust and the Company {together
thi “Fund”).

The Trusl registered as an Allemativa Invesiment Fumd [AIF) with effact from 1 July 2014, wilh the Financial
Conduct Authority and the Commission de Survellance du Sector Financier. As a non-EEA AIF with a non-EEA
AlIFM the Trust is not authorised or regulated under AIFMD and consaguently is not required 1o have a depositary.

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been applied consislenily in dealing with flems which are considerad
material in relation o these consolidated financial statemenis:

Basls of accounting

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention medified by the
revaluation of invesiments and financial liabilities in accordance with applicable United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and the Slalement of Recommended Practice for Authorzsed Funds (the “SORP™) lssued by Investment
Management Association in Oclober 2010,

The consolfidated financial statements have been prapared on a going concarn basis.

B I idati

The consolidated financial statements include the resulls of the Trust and its wholly-owned subsidiary HSBC CM
Opportunities Invesiments Limiled. The Manager dees nol consider the unconsolidated balance sheot of the Trust

to be of any relevance as the only reeson for setling up the subsidiary company was for fiscal purposes.
Accordingly na unconsclidated balance sheet is presented in these consolidated financial statements.

| fational curren

The consoclidated financial statements are presanted in US Dollars because thal is (e currency of the prmary
aconamic enviranment in which the Fund operates.

Invesiments

Imvestments in investimant funds are valued at the closing net assel value per unit for the underiying investments
thal the Fund holds, as at 5 pm (Guermngzey lima) on the balance sheet date. Investments in underlying funds which
are nol quoted on a recognised stock axchange or other trading facllily are valued at the net asset valves provided
by such onlities or thelr administrators, These valuas may be unaudited or may themselves be estimales. In
addition, these enlifies or thair administrators may not provide values al all or in a limely manner and, to the extent
that values are nol avallable, those invesiments will be valued by the [nvestment Adviser using valualion lechnigues
appropriate 1o those investiments, In determining fair value, the Investmant Adviser takes into consideration, where
applicable, the impact of suspension of redemptions, liquidation proceedings, Investmaents in side pockets and olher
significant factors, The Directors of the Manager have no reason to believe that the valuations used are
unreazonable.
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HSEC CREDIT MARKET OFPORTUNITIES FUND

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
7 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1 m rilifii

Realised and unrealised surpluses and deficits on investments are included on the consolidated statement of tolal
raturn, Reallsed galins and losses on sales of securities are determined using the average cost method. Purchases
and sales of the investmenis are accounted for on a trade dale plus ona basls,

Revenue

Invastment income and deposil interest are included in the consolidated statement of lotal relurn on an accruals
basis. All non-class specific income s allocated to each unil class In proportion to the total net assets of the unit
class during the year, All class spesific Incoma |s allocated to the unit class to which it relates.

Expenses

Expenses are included in the consolidated statement of total return on an accruals basis. All nen-class specific
expenses ara allocated lo each unil class in proportion 1o the total net assets of the unil class during the year. Al
class specific expenses are allocated to the unit class to which they rolate.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs arise Trom credil faciliies held by the Fund. These cosls are recognised in the consclidated
statement of total return on an accrual basis.

Uss of estimates and judgements

The preparation of consolidated financial statemenls in accordance with the recognition and measuremant
principles of United Kingdom Accounting Standards requires management lo make judgements, estimales and
assumplions that affect the application of policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assels and fiabililies at the date of the consolidated financial statements and he reperted amounts of

income and expansas during the year.

The estimates and associated assumplions are based on historical experience and various other faclors that are
balleved to be reasonable under tha circumstancas, the resulls of which form the basis for making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent frem other sources. Actual resulls could
differ from those astimatos,

Foraign cur

Foreign currency lransactions are recorded at the rale of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary
assels and llablites denominafed in foreign currencles are ranslated to US Dollars at the foraign currency chasing
exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet date. The Fund reports the realised exchange gain or loss as well as the
unraalised exchange apprecialion or depreciafion on non-US Dollar denominated invastments in the consolidated
statement of tofal return. Any realisad exchange gains or losses as well as unrealised appreciation or depraciation
arising from non-US Dellar denominated payables and receivables and on fereign eurrency transactions are
reflectod in the consolidated staterment of total rolurn.

Eorward foreign exchange contracls

The unrealised appreciation or depreciation on open forward foreign exchange conlracls is calculaled by reference
o the difference belwean the contractod rate and the rate (o close out the confract. Unrealised appreciation is
reported as an assol and unrealised depreciation is reported as a liabilily in the consolidated balance shoat, All nat
gains or losses on forward foreign exchange contracts are recorded in the consolidated statement of total return,

Cash
Cash comprizges current deposits with banks,
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HSBC CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES FUND

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
h Fl it

Under Financlal Reporling Standard No. 1 (Revised) the Fund is exempt from the requirement lo prepare a cash
flow statement as It complies wilh the conditions for open-ended Investiment funds.
Formaltion axpenss

In accordance wilth the Fund's Prospeclus the formation cosls may be amorlised over a perlod not exceeding five
yaars or such shorter period as the Manager may daterming, This ireatment is in line with the Prospectus but nol in
line with United Kingdom Accounting Standards, this departure from Uniled Kingdom Accounting Standards does
not have & matarial impact on the resulls reported In the consofidated financial statements.

Unils in lzsue

Redeemable perticipating units are redeemable at the oplion of the holder of redeemable participating units and will
be classified as financial labilities,

Fair fin I nd financial liakilii

All of the fnancial assals and liabiflies of the Fund are held al fair values,

The net gaindoss on financial assets and liabilities are disclosed in the consolidated staternent of lotal return,
Realised gaing and losses on sale of socurities are determined using the average cost method,

3 NET CAPITAL GAINS Yoar ended Yoar ended
30 Agpril 2015 30 April 2014
US3'000 S5'000
Met realisad gains on non-derivative invesiments 3,014 3967
Unrealised (losses)gains on non-derivative investmants (1,449) 1,694
Met realised {losses)gains on derivalive invesimants {1,339) 483
Unrealised gains/{losses) on derivative investmants 153 (53)
Total nel capilal gains 379 [
4  OPERATING EXPENSES
Year ended Year ended
a0 April 2015 a0 April 2014
LIE5'000 US5'000
Payabla 1o the Manager and ils assodates:
Management fee (687) (803)
Parformance fae - (161}
(G687} {1,064)
Payable lo the Trustes and its associates:
Trusies feos {46) (59)
Other expenses:
Audit fees {24} (24}
Formalion expenses {12) (15)
Other sundry exponses (38) (#5)
Write back of uncrystallised performance fea 41 -
{33) (a4}
Tolal expensos {7E6) {1.207)
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HSBC CREDIT MARKET OFFORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS (COMTINUED)
5 MAMAGEMENT, TRUSTEE AND INVESTMENT ADVISER AGREEMENTS

Under the tarms of tha trust deed dated 8 February 2007, as amended from time to time (the "Trust Deed”), HSBC
Managemant {Guernsey) Limited is the Manager of HSBC Alleralive Strategy Fund, which includes the Fund. In
accordance with the Prospectus the Manager is entitled fo receive of 1.65% of tho nel asset value per annum for
the U3 Dollar Class and the Euro Class, a fea of 0.80% for the Instituional Class (US Dollar), and a fee of 0.65%
for the US Dollar R Class. The managemant fee for the year amounted to US$686,954 (2014: US$I02,727). The
fee outstanding at the year and was USSNI (2014: USENI.

Under the terms of the Trust Deed, the Manager appoinled HSBC Allemative [nvesiments Limited as the
Invesiment Adviser of the HSBC Allernative Stralegy Fund. In accordance with the Prospectus the Manager |s
enfiled to receiva a performance fes If the percentage increase in the nel asset value per unit at the ralevant
Valuation Polnt comparad wilh the net asset value per unit at tho start of the current performance period axtends
the calculated return on the relevant index (the “Index Relwrn™) and the net assat valeo per unlt at the start of the
performance period Is not less than the net asset valua par unit at the and of any pravious performance pariod. The
Indax Return is calculaled as the porcantage increasae of an imputed investment in the index over the performance
period, including appropriate compounding effects where applicable, with the index being updated in line wilh
prevaling market interest rates as al the last valualion point in March, June, September and December. The
performance fea for the year amounted to USSNI (2014; US$160,686) of which US$40,760 did not crystalise and
was reversed durlng the year. The fee oulstanding al the year end was USSNI (2014: US$54,257).

Uncer the terms of the Trust Deed, HSBC Private Bank (C..) Limited is the Trustes. In accordance wilh the
Prospectus the Trustes is entifled lo receive a fes of 0.10% of the nel assel valus per annum. The trustee fea for
the year amounted lo USS45,822 (2014: US359,363). The fee culstanding al the year and was LUSEMIl (2014:
LISENI.

6 DEBTORS

As at As at
30 April 2045 30 Apeil 2014
US3'000 US%'000
Sales awalling selilement 26 64
Unrealised gain on forward foreign exchange contracts (see Mote 12) 121 -
Other dabtors . 21 a
168 101

7 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
As al As al
30 Agpril 2015 30 April 2014
US$000 USE'000
Caszh and bank balancas 20 238

Cash balances are hold by Stale Street Custodial Services (Iraland) Limitad (lhe “Custodian®). The Fund's cash is
maintained within the Custodian's sub-custodial network in segregated accounts, The credit rating of State Street
Caorporation, the parent company of the Cuslodian, at 30 Apeil 2015 was A+ (2014: A+).

B CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

As al As al

30 April 2015 30 April 2014

LISS'000 USE000

Loans payable (ses Note 11) (3.228) (2,720)
Accrued Performance fee (see Mole 5) - (54)
Unrealised loss on forward forelgn exchange contracts (see Note 12) - (31)
Other credilors (2086) {157}
[3,434) (2.962)
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HEBC CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES FUND

HOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS (COMTIMUED)

9  TAXATION STATUS
The umbrella fund, HSBC Alternative Strategy Fund, iz exempl from Guemnsey income tax under the Income Tax
{ﬁIE]:;Tnpt Bodies) (Guemsey) Ordinances 1988 and is charged an annual exemption fee of GBP1,200 (2014: GBP

10 REDEEMABLE PARTICIPATING UNITS IN ISSUE

Instituficnal Total Mumber
LS Dollar Class Eurg US Dallar of Uniis
Class  (US Daollar) Class R Class in issue
Redaamabla Paricipating Units In
isswe at 1 May 2014 365548  64,106.91 3550294 13,681.86 426,847.19
lssued on Subscriplions 7.279.50 - 1252745 - 19,806.65
Redemplions (97,684.49)  (3,726.08) (13.0650.01)  (3472.85) {117,933.43)
Redeamable Parlicipating Units in
issue at 30 April 2015 _223,150.49  @0,380.83 3498008 10,209.01 328,720.41
Instituvtional Total Number
s Dollar Class Euro US Dallar of Units
Class  (US Dollar) Class R Class i issue
Redeemable Participating Units in
issue at 1 May 2013 400,468.803  B7,297.24 61,8330 - 529,800,11
Issued on Subscriplions 18,058.15  21,088.43 = 20,861.86 60,908.44
Redemplions (104,871.60) (26,178.76) (26,331.00)  (7.18000)  (163,661.38)
Redeemable Participating Units in
issue at 30 April 2014 356548 64105891 35,502.94 13,681.86 426, 84749

All series of units rank equally for allocation of income and expenses and have the same rights altached o them
other than managemant fee rates as noted in Note 5,

The Manager may limit the number of units in the Trust which may be redeemed on any dealing day to nol more
than 15% of the total number of units in issue immadiately bafore such date, Any redemption of units during the first
12 calendar moenths from the date of subscription shall be subject 1o a redemplion fos payable lo the Fund and
equal to 5% of redemplion proceads. Therealter tha redamplion fee shall be 0%.

A maimum initial charge of up o 3% of subscription monies may be charged on all classes at the Manager's
discration.

On 30 Oclober 2011 the Trusl changed ils name from HSBC Dislressed Markels Fund to HSBC Cradit Market
Opportunities Fund due to @ change in the invesiment focus of the Trust. As a resull the net asse! value per unit at
30 October 2011 was rebased to USD 100 or Euro 100 as appropriate, and the number of unils held by sach
Unitholder was amended accordingly.

Institutional
US Dollar Clasgs Ewo US Dollar
Class (US Dollar) Class R Class® Tolal
US$'000 USE000 USE000  USF000  USS000
Mel Aszols at 30 April 2015 27,192 7,504 4,734 1,129 40,559
Met Assels at 30 April 2014 37,654 7. r95 5,840 1,475 52,764
Mel Asseals at 30 Apsil 2013 44,664 7553 8,965 - 61,182

* The U3 Dollar R Class launched on 31 July 2013,

The Fund's ned assel values per unil are disclosed on page 21,
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HSBC CREDIT MARKET OPFORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
11 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
HSBC Private Bank {C.1.) Limited acts as Trustes ta tha Fund.

The Fund also placed money on deposit with the Trustes on a regular basis throughout the year. The Interes! rale
racelvad iz congistent with that recolved on a normal commercial depasit.

HSBC Altarnative Investments Limited (he “Investment Adviser™) is wholly owned by parties that are affiliated with
tha Manager and the Trusles.

Loan

Tha Fund has the ability 1o borrow up to 25% of ils net asset value for a period of up to six months to cover a cash
shortfall caused by mismalched settlement dates on purchase and sale Iransactions and to fund redemptions; and
for Invesiment purposes, subjest lo a maximum of 10% of the Fend's nel assel value, o faclitate additional
invastmant in Investment Funds. There were no breaches of these borrowing restriclions by the Fund during the

Yiar,

HSBC Private Bank (G.1.) Limited provided credit facilities to the Fund during the year, Al the year end the loan
oulstanding was US53,228,000 or 7.96% of its Met Asset Value (2014 USS2,720,000 or 5.16% of its Net Assat
Valua). The interest paid during the yoar was US332,466 (2014: US$24,331). The interest rale prevailing at the
halance shest date is 1.0200% (2014; 0,9900%). The loan is repayable on demand and there were no breaches of
these borrowing restrictions by the Fund during the year.

There were no other relaled parly transactions for the year ofher than fees paid lo the Manager, Trustes and
Invesiment Adviser as oullined in Note 5.

12 FORWARD FOREIGN EXCHANGE CONTRACTS

The Fund may utilise derivative contracls for the purpose of hadging against forelgn currency risk only and is
prohibited from investing in derivative instruments for speculative purposes. Mo more than 15% of the Fund's net
asset value may be ullised as margin o pramium o effect thesa lransactions. Aszsats may be denominated In
currencies other than the funclional currency of sach unit class and certain currency exposure will be hedged back
to the rolovant unit class currancy. Hedging for this purpose may be by means of forward foreign exchange
canlracts or options an such centracts or by using such other derivative instruments as may be available and having
tha same or similar affect.

The Investment Advisar ratains the right to vary the policy on currency hedging at its absolute discretion. AN costs of
such hedging will be mel by the holders of the ralavant unit class only.

The following forward exchange conlracts were oulstanding at 30 April 2015 for the purposes of hadging foreign
currency assets on the HSBC Cradit Market Oppariunities Fund - Euro Class,

Matwrity Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterparty Unreallsed Galn

uss
29-May-2015 EUR 4,206,293 UsD 4,507,352 Slale Streel Bank 120,780
20-May-2015  EUR 13,063 LISD 14,247 State Streat Bank 405
Total unrealised gains on forward foreign exchange confracls 121,185

The following forward mechange contracls wera cutstanding at 30 Aprl 2014 for the purposes of hedging foraign
eurrency assots on the HSBC Cradit Market Opportunities Fund = Euro Class,

Maturity Amount Bought Amount Sold Counterpariy Unrealised Loss

uss
J0-May-2014 EUR 4,205,042 US$ 5,827,725 Slale Street Bank (31,208)
31-May-2014 EUR 28,281 UsS§ 39,231 Slala Strest Bank (234)
Total unrealised losses on forward foreign exchange contracts (31,439
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HEBC CREMNT MARKET OPPORTUMITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
13 FINAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Market risk oversight

The Manager takes a mulli-tiered approach to risk management, with the understanding and management of risk
embedded in the manager solection and portfolio management processes, logether with portfolio oversight and
manitoring in accordance with Fund Investiment restriclions, as listed in the relevant Fund Seclion In the prospectus.

In manager selection, due diigence revolves around understanding whether the risks a hedge fund manager takes
in the pursuit of relums are appropriate and controlled. Complomenting this investmant focused due dillgence, s a
separate operational due diligence process, which evaluates the buziness and operational (non-investment) risks of
a hedge fund and seeks to avoid hedge funds where inadequate struclure or procass could compromise an
investment.

In poriiolio management, ensuring that portfolios are appropriately diversified is paramount. In crder to assess risk
and porifolio diversification, both qualilative and guantitative techniques are used, including returns and exposure-
baged analysis.

The Manager regularly monitors each Fund's compliance with the investment restrictions detailed in the Prospeclus,
and relaing oversight of all aspects of the risk management process,

The main rlsks arising from the Fund's financial instruments are market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Market risk

Market risk arises mainly from uncertainly aboul future prices of financial instruments held. It represents the
potential lass the Fund might sulfer through holding markel positions in the face of price movements. The
Investment Adviser considors the assel allocation of the porifolio in ordor to minimise the risk associaled with
particular cowntries or industry sectors whilst continuing to fallow the Fund's invesimant objective.

Market risk embodies the potential for beth losses and gains and includes currency risk, Interast rate risk and price
risk. The profitability of the Fund's investment programme dopends to a great extent on correct assessments of the
future course of price movements of securilies and equities and other Invesiments, Thore can be no assurance that
the Manager will be able to accurately predict these price movements. The securilies markets have in recent years
been characlerised by great volatilily and unpredictability. Wilh respect to the investmant siralegy Into which the
Investment Adviser has invesled the Fund's assels, there is always some, and from time o fime a significant,
degres of markat risk.

Oatails of the Fund's investiment portfolio at the balance sheot date are disclosad in the Portfolio of Investments
included on page 21.

{ay Other price risk

Price riak i3 the rigk that the value of the investments will flucluate as a resull of changes in market pricas (othar
than those arising from interest rale risk or currency risk), whelher caused by faclors spacific lo an individual
invesiment, its issuer or all factors affecting all invesimenis traded in the market,

The Fund is reguired to comply with the standard investmenl and borrowing restrctions as defined in the
Prospeclus. The Fund's invesiment restrictions aro monitored on a regular basis by the Trustee of the Fund and
raviewed quarterly by the Manager. Thare are specific guidelines in place for moniloring and reporting breaches,
and siluations where holdings como closa Lo restriction levels,

{b) Interest rate risk

The majority of the Fund's financial assels are nvestments in investmen! funds which neither pay inferest nor have
a malurity date. The underlying funds the Fund invesis in are exposed to Interest ralo risk; however the Fund
mitigates this risk by diversilying ils investmeants. The Fund is exposed to varinble interest rates on cash and bank
balances of US$20,213 (2014: US$238,769).

The Furd has borrowed US$3,228,000 (2014: US$2,720,000) al year end. To minimise ils interest rate risk the

Fund enlars into floaling rale loan agreements, The interest rale prevalling al the balance sheet date is 1.0200%
{2014: 0.9900%).
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HSBC CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES FUND

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Market risk [continued)

(c} Foreign currency risk

The Fund may invest in financial instruments and enter inlo transactions denominated in currencies olher than its
funclional currency. Consequaently the Fund is exposed fo risks thal the axchange rale of ils currency ralative to
athar foreign curroncles may change In & manner that has an adverse effect on the value of that porlion of the
Fund's assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other than US Dallars.

The Fund also offers redeemabla parlicipating unils denominaled in Eure exposing (e unitholders to foraign
currency risk. This risk Is miligated on behalf of the unitholders by the Fund entering into forward foreign exchange
conlracls as described furlher in this note.

The Funds currency risk ls managed on a monthly basis by the Investment Adviser in accordance wilh policles and
proceduras in place. All currency exposure at the portfolic level is hedged into the currency of the relevant unit clags
on a monthly basls, using standard monthly forwards. The Fund's overall currency positions and exposures are
manitored on a monthly basis by the Managor,

The following table sels oul the Fund's lotal expesure to forelgn currency risk and the nat axposure \o the forelgn
currancies al 30 April 2015,

Monetary Assels
Currancy and Liabilties Todal Forward FX Mel
LIS5000 LISS'000 US$000
Eurg . 4,733 4,733

The following table sets oul tha Fund's total exposure o foraign currency risk and the nel exposure 1o the foraign
currencies al 30 April 2014.

Menatary Aszels
Currency and Liabilities Total Forward FX Met
LIS$000 US$'000 Us$000
Euro - 5,836 5836
Crodit risk

Cradit rigk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation of commitment
that it has entered inlo with the Fund,

The Fund is exposad to credit risk on parties with whom it trades and also bears the risk of selllement defaull.

Cradit risk arising on transactions wilh brokers relates to Iransaclions awaiting sefflement. Risk relating to unsellled
transactions is consldered small due to the short selllement period Involved and the high credit qualily of the
brokers used. The Fund monitors the eredit rating and financial positions of the brokers used to further mitigate the
cradit risk of underlying invesimenis.

Substantially, all of the assels of the Fund are hald by State Streat Cuslodial Services (Ireland) Limiled (the
“Custodian”). Bankruptcy or insolvency of the Custodian may cause the Fund's rights with respact to securities held
by the Custodian to be delayad or Bmitad,

The Fund manitors its risk by monitoring the credit quality and financial positions of the Cuslodian the Fund uses,
The credil rating of State Street Corporation, the parent company of the Custodian, at 30 April 2015 was A+ (2014
As+). HSBC Private Bank (C.1) Limited, the Trustee, provided credit facililies to the Fund during the pericd. The
credit raling of HSBG Heldings ple, the ulimate parent of the Trustee, al 30 April 2015 was Aa3 as raled by
Moody's Ralings Agency. The credit rating of the Trusles at 30 Aprl 2014 was Aad as rated by Moody's Ratings
Agency. The Trusles is no longoer separately rated,
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HSBC CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES FUND

HOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
13 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (COMTINUED)}

Cradit risk (continuead)
In additicn the Fund has indirect exposure to credit risk through the credit rsk hekd by the wnderying fund
investments.

The Fund minimises concentrations of credit risk by undertaking transactions with a large numbaer of counterparties.

Liquidity risk

The main liabilty of the Fund iz the quarterly redempltion of any units that investors wish to redeem and the loan
repayable to HSEC Privale Bank (C.1.) Limited. The risk s that the Fund might nol be able to liguidate investments
positions in order o repay amounts demanded by ils unitholders or its lendar.

The Fund's liquidity risk Is managed on an ongoling basis by the Investment Adviser in accordance with poficles and

precedures in place. Itis not the normal policy of the Fund to invest directly in funds, limited parinerships or other

Lﬂhldas that have no liquidity issues. The Fund's overall liguidity risks are monitored on a monthly basis by tha
anager,

The Fund's investment restriclions, as dafined in the Prospecius, some of which perfain to the management of

liquidity risk and concentrations thereof, Include restrictions In respect of investment in closed-anded funds,

resirictions in respect of redemptions, restriclions in respect of the percentage holding allowable In any individual

investrment fund, Liquidity risk is monilored on a continuous basis by the Trustee of the Fund. There are specific

g{lﬁd‘alhas in place for monitoring and reporling breaches, and sifuations where holdings come close lo restricion
5.

All of the Fund's liabilities are payable within one year and the loan is repayable on demand,

At the 30 April 2015 the following investes funds had a redemptlion period of greater than 80 days In place to
redeam ils investrment holdings,

Marked Value

30 April 2045

USE000

AG Super Fund Internaticnal Lid. - Class YYY, Seres 1 161
AG Super Fund International Lid. - Class YYY, Serles 2 9
AG Super Fund International Lid. - Class YYY, Sarias 4 112
CQS ABS Feeder Fund Lid. - Class B 9,847
10,119

Al the 30 April 2014 the following investes funds had a redemption period of greater than 90 days in place to
redaam ils investment holdings.

Market Value
30 April 2014
USE000
AG Super Fund International Ltd. - Class YYY, Series 1 256
AG Super Fund International Lid. - Class Y'Y, Saries 2 1
AG Super Fund International Lid. - Class YYY, Series 4 172
439

Leverage
Where a fund permits leverage, the undedying volalility of the fund will be significantly greataer than would otharwise
have been the case without the permitted levarage. Whilst this gives a fund the ability to participale In higher refurns
associated with greater exposure, it also gives a fund exposura to increasad lossas where markets in general and a
fund in particular, invest in assals where prices sulfer declines.

Certain investment funds in which a fund may invest use material levels of leverage and are nat Imited in either
their borrowing capacity nor in their level of margin commilment. The total value of positfons held by these funds
may axceed thair Mel Asset Values. The leverage acquired offers the possibility of achieving a much greater overall
redurn, but also increases the Fund's valatility and carries the risk of tofal loas of the amouent invested. Please rofor
o note 11 for datails on borrowing.
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HSEBC CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES FUND

WOTES TO THE COMSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED])

14

1%

16

17

18

DISTRIBUTION POLICY

The Manager does not recommend the payment of a dividend to the unithalders. All income will be “rolled-ug”, and
income will not ba distsibuted but will be retained in the Fund and reflected in the net asset value par unil.

FOREIGH EXCHANGE RATE

The following foreign exchange rale was used to translate assets and liabilities Into the reporiing currency (US
Dallars):
As at 30 April 2015 Ag at 30 April 2014
Eurc 0.8918 0.7254
Brilish Pound 0.6469 0.5948

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 April 2045 and 30 April 2014, the Fund did not have any significant commilmants or contingent liabilities.
SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR

The Trust registared as a non-EEA Alternative Investmant Fund (AIF) with effect from 1 July 2014,

PricewaterhouseCoopers C1 LLP look over as auditors of the Trust from KPMG Channel Islands Limited during the
yaar,

There wera no olher significant events during the year ended 30 Apil 2015,
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There wera no significant events subsequent 1o the yoar and date that require adjustment te, or disclosure in thess
consolidaled financial statements,
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HSBC CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES FUND

PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS AS AT 30 APRIL 2015 {UNAUDITED)

Market
Security Description Holding value % of total
Uss'000 net assols
USD (2094: 104.9745)
AG Super Fund International Lid, = Class YYY, Series 1 126 151 0.37
AG Super Fund International Ltd. — Class YYY, Series 2 5 ] 0.02
AG Super Fund International Lid. - Class YYY, Series 3 4,221 5,796 14.29
AG Super Fund International Ltd. — Class YYY, Series 4 79 112 0.28
Capeview Recovery Fund Class © UA 10,661 3,674 2.06
COS ABS Feeder Fund Lid, - Class B 1,773 0,847 2427
JPS Cradil Opportunities Fund (Cayman) Lid, — Series A USD -
Series O7-2012 B473 #,693 2119
Kimg Straet Europe Lid. NYKSE - Class A, Serfes 2 55,026 7,782 19,19
QZ Europe Overseas Fund Il Lid. - Tranche L Prime Restricted
Mo Special Investimants Class 5,730 7841 10,93
Portfolio of Investimants 43,805 108.00
Mat current liabilties ___3246) (8.00)
Total nel assets 40,559 100,00
Mot agset value per unit Mg at As at
30 April 2015 30 April 2014
HSBC Credil Markel Opportunities Fund — US Dollar Class US8121.86 Us$120.09
HSBC Cradit Market Opportunities Fund = Instiutional Class (US Dollar) LS5124.28 Uss121.60
HSBC Cradil Market Opporlunities Fund — Euro Class €120.68 £119.32
HSBC Credit Market Opporiunities Fund = US Dollar R Class LUSE110.56 US$107.83
Portfolio Classification As at Asgal
30 April 2015 30 April 2014
% of Portfolia % of Porliolio
Securilies with an oflicial stock exchange lsting 22.48% 17.76%
Unlisted securities T7.52% 52.24%
100.00% 100.00%
Sector Allocation Az al A at
30 April 2015 30 April 2014
Distrassad 17.80% 27.90%
Credit Long/Shor S0.40% 39.20%
Event Driven 31.80% 32.90%
100.00% 100.00%

129/209




EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HSBC CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT PORTFOLID CHANGES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2015* (UNAUDITED)

Purchases
Dascriplion Mominal Cosl
USE000
COS ABS Feeder Fund Lid. - Class B 1 2
Sales
Dascription Meminal Procesds
LSE000
Halcyon Offshore Assel-Backed Value Fund Lid. - Initial Series Restricted Class 2,38 5,215
0OZ Europe Ovorseas Fund Il Ltd, — Tranche L Prime Restricled No Special
Invasiments Class 2,368 3100
King Streat Europe Ltd. MYKSE - Class A, Serles T 17.581 2,500
AG Super Fund International Ltd. — Class YYY, Series 3 1.279 1,750
C0S ABS Feader Fund Lid, - Class B az 500
AG Super Fund International Lid. -~ Class YYY, Series 1 39 80
AG Super Fund International Lid. = Class YYY, Series 4 20 2
AG Super Fund International Lid. - Class ¥YY, Series 2 2 3

* Significant portfclio changes are defined as the value of purchases or sales of a security exceading 2% of the nel
assols of the Trust al the start of the year. In any avenl, the 20 largest purchases and the 20 largest sales musl be
shown.
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HSBC CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES FUND

INFORMATION ON HSEC ALTERMNATIVE STRATEGY FUND

HSBC Alternative Strategy Fund is an umbrelia unit trust comprising the following sub-funds and Classes (s at 30 April
2015}

HSBC Special Opporiunilies Furd — US Dollar Class
HSBC Spocial Opporlunities Fund - Euro Class

collectively known as HSBC Speclal Oppertunities Fund
HSBC Credit Market Opporlunities Fund — US Dollar Class
HSBC Credit Market Opporlunities Fund — Ewre Class
HSBC Credit Markot Opportunities Fund — Instilutional Class (US Dollar)
HSBC Credil Market Opportunities Fund = US Dollar R Class

collectivaly known as HSBC Credit Market Opportunities Fund (formerly known as HSBC Distressed Markets
Fumid)

Unitholders should note that coples of the latest financlal statoments of aach of tha above Funds are avallabla
from the Manager free of charge on request.
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HSBC
27
66,533,142.58 8,062,486
7,123,800.81 863,262
59,409,341.77 7,199,224
418,933.31
135.94 16,473
HSBC
27
40,143,736.25 4,864,618
1,440,860.44 174,603
38,702,875.81 4,690,014
211,210.09
34,438.47
121.03 14,666
119.65 16,280
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27 100,000 1,869
100,000
100,000
27
Carl Rosumek 0
KPMG
Isabel Robins 0
MRICS
HSBC
HSBC
Neil Aitken 0
Michael Quarrington 0
FCA MSCI
HSBC 0
Kate Charles
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HSBC

3,383

27

HSBC

HSBC Portfolio Selection Fund

2,311.1

HSBC
62.5
HSBC Uni Folio
HSBC
98.1
HSBC Alternative Strategy Fund
HSBC UCITS
UCITS 2443
HSBC UCITS AdvantEdge Fund
BFC
15.4
BFC Value Chain Fund
651.8

Various Private Equity

Syndicates
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23 103

27 31
UFJ 121.18
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HSBC
2014 12 31
2014 2013
27,460 3,328 36,828 4,463
158 19 157 19
28,286,438 3,427,751 25,688,322 3,112,911
23,226,133 2,814,543 25,712,109 3,115,793
500,000 60,590 500,000 60,590
52,012,571 6,302,883 51,900,431 6,289,294
10 5,381,967 652,187 1,611,053 195,227
10 2,099,253 254,387 2,039,964 247,203
11 10,199,493 1,235,975 13,241,363 1,604,588
17,680,712 2,142,549 16,892,380 2,047,019
34,332,016 4,160,354 35,008,051 4,242,276
34,359,634 4,163,700 35,045,036 4,246,757
12 157,762 19,118 157,762 19,118
34,201,714 4,144,564 34,887,274 4,227,640
34,359,476 4,163,681 35,045,036 4,246,757
2015 27
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2014 12 31

2014 2013
62,301,828 7,549,736 72,516,247 8,787,519
1,103 134
62,301,828 7,549,736 72,517,350 8,787,652
19,554,774 2,369,648 24,020,046 2,910,749
15,039,008 1,822,427 12,332,506 1,494,453
5,029,434 609,467 4,673,521 566,337
1,409,386 170,789 1,155,616 140,038
204,858 24,825 403,579 48,906
(82) (10)
530,811 64,324 148,952 18,050
1,065,749 129,147 401,635 48,670
9,368 1,135 15,834 1,919
144,000 17,450 112,579 13,642
(42,987,388) (5,209,212)  (43,264,186) (5,242,754)
19,314,440 2,340,524 29,253,164 3,544,898
19,314,440 2,340,524 29,253,164 3,544,898
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2014 12 31

2014 157,762 19,118 34,887,274 4,227,640 35,045,036 4,246,757
19,314,440 2,340,524 19,314,440 2,340,524

150 (20,000,000)  (2,423,600) (20,000,000) (2,423,600)

2014 12 31 157,762 19,118 34,201,714 4,144,564 34,359,476 4,163,681
2013 157,762 19,118 20,634,110 2,500,441 20,791,872 2,519,559
29,253,164 3,544,898 29,253,164 3,544,898

150 (15,000,000)  (1,817,700) (15,000,000) (1,817,700)

2013 12 31 157,762 19,118 34,887,274 4,227,640 35,045,036 4,246,757
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2014 12 31

2014 2013
19,314,440 2,340,524 29,253,164 3,544,898
9,368 1,135 15,834 1,919
(82) (10)
19,323,808 2,341,659 29,268,916 3,546,807
2,485,976 301,251 (10,822,186) (1,311,432)
788,332 95,530 387,441 46,950
22,598,116 2,738,440 18,834,171 2,282,325
22,598,116 2,738,440 18,834,171 2,282,325
82 10
82 10
(20,000,000) (2,423,600)  (15,000,000) (1,817,700)
(20,000, 000) (2,423,600)  (15,000,000) (1,817,700)
2,598,116 314,840 3,834,253 464,635
25,688,322 3,112,911 21,854,069 2,648,276
28,286,438 3,427,751 25,688,322 3,112,911
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HSBC 1986 9 25
HSBC
HSBC
L.P.
L.P. L.P.
L.P. L.P. HDSAP GP
(@) IFRS
2008 IFRS
2013 IFRS
(b) 2018 IFRS 9
IAS 39
1AS 39
IAS 39

©
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33 1/3
3
1,112,027 2013 629,231 2014 12 31
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC UCITS BFC HSBC
HSBC HSBC
HSBC
LP LP
LP HSBC
HSBC HSBC
HSBC HSBC
HSBC HSBC
HSBC USA HSBC
HSBC

2014 12 31
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2013 24,674,035

272,987 2013 143,149

2014 2013

- (82)

- (82)
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2014 1 1 162,502 1,027,736 1,190,238
2014 12 31 162,502 1,027,736 1,190,238
2014 1 1 132,358 1,021,052 1,153,410
4,271 5,097 9,368
2014 12 31 136,630 1,026,149 1,162,778
2014 12 31 25,8734 1,587 27,460
2013 12 31 30,144 6,684 36,828
2014 12 31 HSBC C.1l.
28,286,438 2013 25,688,322 2014
2013 1,103
2014 2013
20,945,620 23,705,178
2,280,513 2,006,391
- 540
23,226,133 25,712,109
2012 12 13 10 2012
2013 10
0%
2014 12 31 2013
1989
600
2014 2013
5,381,967 1,611,053
2,099,253 2,039,964
7,481,220 3,651,017
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1 100,000
1 100,000
13
PBCI PBCI
2014 12 31
2013 1,155,616
144,000 2013
14
2014 12 31

6,644,254,961

HSBC

PBCI

112,579
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2014 2013
10,019,493 12,814,108
180,000 427,098
10,199,493 13,241,206
2014 2013
100,000 100,000
157,762 157,762
2014 2013
- 1,103
(9,652,217) (9,740,883)
(15,039,008) (10,051,195)
(657,509) (640,940)
- (401, 635)
C.I.
1,409,386
981,266,811 2013
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HSBC
12 31
2014 2013
28,286,438 25,688,322
28,286,438 25,688,322
ALCO

2014 2013
5,360,176 735,427
961,134 304,808
550,663 199,649
50,691 25,788
97,517 220
17,353 -
2,043,346 -
89,912 86,426
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2014 12 31 5%
5%
2014 2013
268,009 36,771
52,552 19,562
27,533 9,982
2,535 1,289
4,876 11
868 -
102,167 -
(d)
)
Q)
8
@
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
Q)
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HSBC

2014 12 31

41,058,402

41,058,402

41,058,402
(1,927,357)

39,131,045
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

Motes 2004 2013
LSS Us%

NOMN-CURRENMT ASSETS
Praperty, plant and equipment f 27,460 36,828
Investment in subsidiaries 2 158 157
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents T 28,286,438 25,688,322
Amounts due from funds under management 88 23,226,133 25,712,109
Amounts due from fellow subsidiary
companies 500,000 500,000
Current assets 52,012,571 51,900,431
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Amounts due to fellow subsidiary companies 10 5,381,967 1,611,053
Amounts due to related companies 10 2,099,253 2,039,964
Other liabilities 1 10,199,493 13,241,363
Current liabilities 17,680,712 16,892,350
Met current assets 34,332,016 35,008,051
Wet assets 34,350.476 35,045,036
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Called up share capital 12 157,762 157,762
Retained earmings 34,201,714 34,887,274
Total shareholders' equity 34,359,476 35,045,036

The financial statements on pages 6 to 19 were approved by the Board of Directors on 2FMarch 2015 and
are signed on its behall by:

,/%’ %ﬂr"'éﬂ A T&M?E

K CHARLES M QUARRINGTON
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
The notes on pages 10 to 19 form an integral part of these financial statements,

150/209



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

&
HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
Motes 2014 2013
3% Uss Uss LSS
INCOME
Management, Trustee &
Performance fees 3 62,301,828 72,516,247
Interest income 7 - 1,103
62,301,828 72,517,350

EXFENSES
Commissions 3 19,554,774 24,020,046
Investment advisory fees 3 15,039,008 12,332,506
Trustee, Custody & Transfer 5,029,434 4,673,521
Apgency fees
Salaries and benefits 1,409,386 1,155,616
Other expenses 4 204,858 403,579
Gain on sale of shares 3 - (82)
Foreign exchange loss 2 330,811 148,952
Management fees paid 1o [,065,749 401,635
Giroup companies
Depreciation 286 9,368 15,834
MNon-executive directors” fees 144,000 112,579

(42,087,388) (43,264,186)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 19,314,440 29,253,164
TAXATION 9 . =
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 19,314,440 29,253,164

“The Company has no other compenent of other comprehensive income other than the profit for the year,

The notes on pages 1010 19 form an integeal part of these financial statements,
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES [N EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

AT 1 JANUARY 2014

Total Comprehensive Income for
the year
Transactions with owners,

recorded directly in equity:
Dividend paid (US3200 per share)

AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

AT 1 JANUARY 2013

Total Comprehensive Income for
the yvear
Transactions with owners,

recorded directly in equity:
Dividend paid (US$130 per share)

AT 31 DECEMBER 2013

Share Capital Retained Eamnings Total Equity
uss Uss Uss

157,762 34,887,274 35,045,036

- 19,314,440 19,314,440

- (20,000,000 (20,000,000%

157,762 34,201,714 34,359,476
Share Capital Retained Earnings Total Equity
Uss Uss Uss

157,762 20,634,110 20,791,872

- 20253164 29,253,164

i (15,000,000) (15,000,000)

157,762 34,887,274 35,045,036

The notes on pages 10 to 19 form an integral pant of these financial statements,
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
Motes 2014 2013
Uss Uss

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation 19,314,440 29,253,164
Adjustments for:
- Depreciation 7 9368 15,834
- Gain on sale of shares = (82)
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in
working capital 19,323,808 29,268,916
Changes in working capital:
- Decrease/ (increase) in other assets 2,485,976 (10,822,186)
- Decrease in other liabilities TAE 332 387,441

22,598,116 18,834,171
Net cash generated from operating activities 22,598,116 18,834,171
CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash flows from sale of shares - 82
Cash used in investing activities - £2
CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid to sharcholders (20,000, 0:0:0) {15,000,000)
Cash used in financing activitics {20,000,000) {15,000,000)
MET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,508,116 3,834,253
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING 25,688,322 21,854,069
OF THE YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 28,286,438 25,688,322

The notes on pages 10 to 19 form an integral pant of these financial statements.
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HSBC Management {Guemsey) Limited (the “Company”) was registered in Guemnsey on 25 September
1986. The Company is domiciled in Guernsey and a wholly owned subsidiary of HSBC Investment
Holdings (Guemnsey) Limited which is registered in Guernsey. The uvltimate parent company is HSBC
Holdings ple, which is a publicly quoted company incorporated in the United Kingdom.

The principal activities of the Company is the management of a varicty of funds and acting as director and
sharcholder of the following General Pariners: Emerging Growth Real Estate Fund 11 L.P., Vimage 1il
Special Situations L.P,, Vintage | Secondary L.P., Secondary Club Deal I L.P., Secondary Club Deal I1L.P.,
and FIDSAP GP Limited.

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION

{2) The Company prepares its financial statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) which give a true and fair view and are in compliance with the
Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008, IFRS comprise accounting standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board and its predecessor body as well as interpretations issued by the
International Financial Reparting Interpretations Committee and its predecessor body.

The Company prepared its financial statements on a consolidated basis for 2013, but it has now
clected to take advantage of the cxemption for the requirement to prepare group financial
statements on the grounds that it is a whelly owned subsidiary of 2 group company which produces
consolidated financial statements available for public use that comply with IFRS. Accordingly, the
Company's financial statements present information about it as an individual undertaking and not
about its group.

ik} Standards amendments and imerpretations that are in issue but not yet effective: IFRS 9, “Financial
Instruments”, effective date | January 2018, specifies how an entity should classify and measure
financial and assets and liabilities, including some hybrid contracts. The standard  improves and
simplifics the approach for classification and measurement of financial assets compared with the
requirements of [AS 39. Most of the requirements in 1AS 39 for classification and measurement of
financial liabilities were carried forward unchanged. The standard applies a consistent approach to
classifying financial assets and replaces the numerous categories of financial assets in LAS 39, cach of
which had its own classilieation criteria. The effeet of the standard is expected to be limited o
changes in disclosures by the Company.

{c) The preparation of financial information requires the use of estimates and assumptions about
future conditions. Use of available information and application of judgement are inherent in the
formation of estimates. Actual results in the future may differ from those reported.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

In the opinion of management, all normal and recurring adjustments considered necessary for a

fair presentation of the Company’s comprehensive income, balance sheet and cash flows in these
financial statements have been made.
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are
considered material in relation to the Company®s financial statements:

Funetional and presentalion currency

ltems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates (‘the functional curreney®).  These financial statements are
presented in US dollars, which is the Company®s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign exchange

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in the functional currency at the rate of exchange prevailing
on the date of transaction, Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in forcign currencies are translated
into the functional currency at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Any resulling exchange
differences are included in the profit or loss for the period. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that arc
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency using
the rate of exchange at the date of the initial transaction. Non-monetary assets and labilities measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency using the rate of exchange at the
date the fair value was determined.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation.

Deepreciation is caleulated al the follewing annual rates so as to write off the cost of property, plant and
equipment over their estimated useful lives using the straight line method:

Fumiture, fixturc and fittings 10%
Computer hardware and related software 33 113%

Computer software costs, other than those specifically related to hardware, are fully written off and are
expensed as incurred.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are measured at cost.  All subsidiaries are wholly owned General Parners, as
detailed on page 10, which are incorporated in Guemnsey.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of ¢ash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value, Such invesiments arc normally those with less than three months to maturity from the
date of acquisition, and include eash, current accounts with banks, money at call, loans and advances to
banks.

Revenue récognition
Management fzes and trustee fees are accounted for on an accruals basis. Performance fees are recognised

when the entitlement o performance fee is reasonably established.
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITEDR

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Comtinued)

3. FEES

Management and trustee fees

The Company receives management fees and trustee fees based on a percentage of the underlying net
asset value or total commitments of the respective funds, Management and trustee fees are recognised on
an accruals basis. Fiduciary Income from the Company’s regulated fiduciary activities totalling
USE1,112,027 (2013: US3629,231) have been carned in the vear ended 31 December 2014,

Commissions

The Company, at its discretion, has agreed to pay return commissions to those branches, fellow
subsidiaries, affiliates and associates of the HSBC Group entitics and certain approved third parties
introducing subscribers 1o funds under management. The return commissions are two fold: firstly a return
of the initial charge and secondly an ongoing trailer commission based on the net asset value of monies
introduced by units and which remain invested, Commissions are accounted for on an accruals basis,

Investment advisory fees

The Company pays investment advisory fees o fellow subsidiaries, associates of the HSBC Group
entities and third parties providing investment advice to the funds under management. Investment
advisory fees are accounted for on an accruals basis,

Manager's performance fees

Under the management agrecments, trust deeds or promoter agreements (as appropriate) in respect of the
HSBC UCITS AdvantEdge Fund Ple, BFC Value Chain Fund, HSBC Porifolio Selection Fund, HSBC
Alternative Strategy Fund, HSBC Unifolio Fund, HSBC Alternative Portfolio Fund, Private Equity
Direet Investment Trust, Secondary Club Deal 1, LP, Secondary Club Deal 11, LP., HSBC European
Private Equity Syndicate, HSBC European Private Equity Syndicate 11, HSBC European Private Equity
Syndicate 111, HSBC Asian Wentures Syndicate, HSBC Asian Ventures Syndicate 11, HSBC Asian
Private Equity Syndicate, HSBC Asian Private Equity Syndicate 11, HSBC Capital USA Private Eguity
Syndicate, HSBC Latin America Private Equity Syndicate, HSBC Guggenheim Aviation Il Syndicate,
Partners Group Secondary Syndicate, Republic Carlyle Syndicate, Republic Carlyle Europe Syndicate,
Republic Private Equity Trust and Republic Private Equity Syndicate, the Company is entitled, subject to
performance of the underlying vehicle, a performance fee. The Company has the ability to share any
such performance fees received with associates and investment advisers as appropriate. Performance fees
totalling USS11,111,364 have been earned in the vear ended 31 December 2014 (2013: US524,674,035),
An expense for performance fees payable is recognised when the right to recover performance fee
income 15 cstablished.
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HSBC MANAGEMENT {GUERNSEY) LIMITED

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. OTHER EXPENSES
Other expense include rental charges of 1JS$272,987 (2013: US%143,149) where the Company is the

lessce, The premises of the Company are rented and this agreement has expired. The renewal of the
property lease is currently being negotiated.

3. GAIM ON SALLE OF SHARES

2014 2013
Uss Uss
Realised gain . (82)
= (82)
6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Fixtures and Computer Total
fittings hardware &
pelated software
LSS USsE Uss
COST
At 1 January 2014 162,502 1,027,736 1,194,238
At 31 December 2014 162,502 1,027,736 1,190,238
DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2004 132,358 1,021,052 1,153,410
Charge lor year 4,271 5,007 0.368
At 3] December 2014 136,630 1,026,149 1,162,778
NET BOOK AMOUNT 25,873 1,587 27,460
At 31 December 2014
At 31 December 2013 30,144 6,684 36,828
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSLEY) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Included in cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2014 are balances with a related party, HSBC
Private Bank {C.1) Limited, of US328,286,438 (2013; US525,688,322). During 2014 the Company
carmed nil interest on these balances (2013; US$1,103),

8. AMOUNTS DUE FROM FUNDS UNDER MANAGEMENT

2014 2013

Lg% Uss

Management focs 20,945,620 23,705,178
Other fees 2,280,513 2,006,391
Trustee fees - 540
23,226,133 25,712,109

9, TAXATION

Following the passing of the Income tax (Zero 10) (Company Intermediate Rate) (Amendment)
(Guemnsey) Ordinance 2012 on 13 December 2002, with effect from | January 2013 the Company's
income arising from specific regulated fduciary business is taxed at the company intermediate rate of
10%%. The remainder of the Company's income is taxed at the company standard rate of 0%,

The Company has LSSnil (2013: USSnil) taxable fduciary profit in the year ended 31 December 2014,

The subsidiarics arc exempt from Guemsey income tax under the Income Tax (Exempt Bodies)
(Guernsey) Ordinances 1989 and are charged an annual exemption fee of GBP 600 each.

10. AMOUNTS DUE TO GROUP COMPANIES

2014 2013

Ust Uss

Amounts due to fellow subsidiary companics 5,381,967 1,611,053
Amounts due to related companics 2,000,253 2,039,964
7481220 3,651,017

Amounts due to Group Companies are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

158/209



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0oooooooo0oooooOo(EsLss)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

15
HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
11. OTHER LIABILITIES
2004 2013
Ussg Uss
Commission payable 10,019,493 12,814,108
Other creditors 180,000 427,255
10,199,493 13,241,363
12, SHARE CAPITAL
2014 2013
Authorised: £ £
100,000 ordinary shares of £1 cach 100,000 100,000
Allotted, called up and fully paid: Uss uUss
100,000 ordinary shares of £1 each
(translated at historic cost) 157,762 157,762

The ordinary shares which represent the equity interests have the following rights attached:

® They carry the right to any fixed dividend as may from time to time be recommended by the
Directors and declared by the Company;

»  They have voling rights with each share carrying one vote;

#  All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Companys residual assets,
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions were made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in am’s leagth
transactions and have been disclosed in these financial statements,

Apart from transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group entered
into the following transactions with its fellow subsidiary companics and related companies:

2004 2013
INCOME STATEMENT USs Uss
Interest income - 1,103
Commissions (9.652.217) (9,740,883)
Investment advisory fees (15,039,008) {10,051,195)
Truslee and eustody fees (657,504 (G0, 8940
Management fees - {401,635)

All staffs acting on behalf of the Company are employed by HSBC Private Bank (C.1) Limited
(PBCI). On a monthly basis, PBCI invoices the Company for staff wtilised in the Company's
operations. For the ycar ended 31 December 2004, PBCL billed the Company a total of
USS1,409,386 (2013: US$1,155,616) for salaries and benefits.

Mon-gxeeutive directors’ of USE144,000 (2013: USS112,57%) were payable in the year.
14, FUNDS UNDER MANAGEMENT

The total net asset of funds under the Company's management at 31 December 20014 was
USS6,981,266,811 (2013 USH6,644,254,961),
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HEBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

15. RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that financial loss arises from the failure of a customer or counterparty to meet
its oblipations under a contract of fund administration, The Company has standards, policies and
procedures dedicated to controlling and monitoring risks from all such activities,

Cash and cash equivalents are maintained with HSBC Group companies where management
considers the credit risk to be minimal.

Fees due from funds under management which are short term in nature. The following table
provides a breakdown of eredit exposure excluding collateral held or other credit enhancements:

At 31 December
2014 2013
Uss LSS
Cash and cash equivalents 28,286,438 25,688,322
28,286,438 25,688,322

(b} Marker risk sranagement

Market risk is the risk that the value of funds under management decreases with a resultant effect on
income.

The Company manages market risk through risk limits approved by the Asset and Liability
Management Committee (ALCO) of HIFBC Group.

(¢} Foreign exchange exposure
Fareign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s forcign exchange exposure arises from changes
in the USE equivalent value of amounts denominated in foreign currencies as set out below:

2014 2013
Uss UsS
ASSETS
Euro 5,360,176 735427
British Pound 961,134 304,808
Swiss Franc 550,603 199,649
Japanese Yen 50,691 25,738
Chinese Yuan 97.517 220
Singapore Dollar 17,353 -
Heng Kong Dollar 2,043,346 -
LIABILITIES
British Pound 89,912 86,426
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15. RISK MANAGEMENT {Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

A 5 percent strengthening of the US dollar against the following currencies at 31 December 2014
would have resulted in the profits (losses) shown below, A 5 percent weakening of the US dollar
would have had the equal but opposite effect to the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes
that all other variables, in particular interest rales, remain constant.

2014 2013

LSS uss
Eura 268,009 36,771
British Pound 52,552 19,562
Swiss Franc 27,533 9,982
Japanegse Yen 2,535 1,289
Chinese Yuan 4,876 11
Singapore Dollar Bl -
Hong Kong Dallar 102,167 -

(d) Liguidicy risk monagement

(2

i

()

Ligquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in realising asseis or otherwise
raising funds to meet commitments,

The Company uses various sources to provide a stable funding. These include maintaining bank
balances in instant access call accounts, inter-Group funding and the Company’s shareholder’s
equity.

Capited Fisk managenens

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base o as to maintain investor, ereditor and

market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Capital consists of called up
share capital and retained earnings. Management monitors the return on capital as well as the level
of dividends to ordinary sharcholders.

The Company is regulated by the Guemnsey Financial Services Commission which sets and
monitors capital requirements for the Company as deseribed on page 20. Management regularly
monitors the Company's capital to ensure compliance with the requirements of the Guemscy
Financial Services Commission,

Interest risk management

The Company's exposure to interest rate risk is limited to its cash and cash equivalents (note 8).
The Company only maintains interest bearing call aecounts and as such interest rate risk is
minimal.

Cperational risk management

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising through fraud, unauthorised activities, error, omission,

inefficiency, systems failure or from external events, It is inherent to every business organisation
and covers a wide spectrum of issues,
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

15, RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The HSBC Group manages this risk through a controls-based environment in which processes are
documented, authorisation is independent and transactions are reconciled and monitored. This is
supported by an independent programme of periodic reviews undertaken by imternal andit, and by
monitoring external operational risk events, which ensures that the HSBC Group stays in line with
best practice and takes account of lessons learned from publicised operational failures within the
financial services industry.

The HSBC Group has codified its operational risk management process by issuing a high level
standard, This explains how the HSBC Group manages operational risk by idemtifying, assessing,
monitoring, controlling and mitigating the risk, rectifving operational risk events, and implementing
any additional procedures required for compliance with local regulatory requircments. The
processes undertaken to manage operational risk are determined by reference to the scale and nature
of each HSBC Group operation. The HSBC Group standard covers the following:

= Operational risk management responsibility is assigned at a senior management level within the
business operation;

= Information systems arc used to record the identification and assessment of operational risks
and generate appropriate, regular management reporting,;

# Operational risks are identified by risk assessments covering operational risks facing each
business and risks inherent in processes, activities and products, Kisk asscssment ingorporates a
regular review of risks identilied to monitor significant changes;

= Operational risk loss data is collected and reported to senior management. This report covers
aggregate operational risk losses and details of incidents above a materiality threshold; and

=  Risk mitigation, including insurance, is considered where this is cost-cffective,

Local management is responsible for implementation of the HSBC Group standard on operational risk,

(h} Reperational risk management

The safeguarding of HSBC's reputation is of paramount importanee to its continued prosperity and
is the responsibility of every member of staff. Reputational risks can arise from social, ethical or
environmental issues, or as a consequence of operational risk events, As a banking Group, HSBC's
good reputation depends upon the way in which it conducts its business, but it can also be afTected
by the way in which clients, to whom it provides financial services, conduct themselves.

Heputational risks are considered and assessed by the Board, HSBC Group Management Board, the
Risk Management Committee, subsidiary company boards, board commillees andlor sénior
management during the formulation of policy and the establishment of HSBC standards. Standards
on all major aspects of business are set for HSBC and for individual subsidiaries, businesses and
functions. These policics, which are an integral part of the internal comtrol systems, are
communicated through manuals and statements of policy and are promulgated through internal
communications and training. The policies set out operational procedures in all arcas of reputational
risk, including money laundering deterrence, environmental impact, anti-corneption measures and
employee relations.

HSBC Group internal audit function monitors eompliance with policies and standard.
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HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

Uss
MNet Assets
Net assets after adjustments 41,058,402
Position Risk -
Counterparty Risk -
Met Asset after adjustment, contingent liabilities and risks 41,058,402
SATISFACTION OF FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Financial resources 41,058,402
Financial resources required (1,92735T)
MET SURPLUS FINAMNCIAL RESOURCES 30,131,045
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HSBC
2015 30

2015 30
23,395,741 2,835,096
26,512 3,213

157

500,000 60,590
13,720,539 1,662,655
37,642,949 4,561,573
7,820,426 947,679
8,276,750 1,002,977
16,097,176 1,950,656
157,762 19,118
26,259,878 3,182,172
(17,000,000) (2,060, 060)
12,128,133 1,469,687
21,545,773 2,610,917
37,642,949 4,561,573
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HSBC
2015 30

2015 30
2,357,509 285,683
536,066 64,960
2,400,425 290,884
(434,088) (52,603)
(2,183,687) (264,619)
(179,737) (21,781)
Aztec Financial Services (Guernsey) Limited (111,967) (13,568)
HSBC Securities Services (Ireland) Limited (55,000) (6,665)
(65,714) (7.,963)
(1,405,996) (170,379)
(252,947) (30,652)
604,864 73,297
845,964 102,514
845,964 102,514
1,450,828 175,811
20,828 2,524
(83,639) (10,135)
(15,970) (1,935)
(68,849) (8,343)
(36,901) (4,472)
(184,531) (22,361)
1,266,297 153,450
1,266,297 153,450
1,266,297 153,450
1,266,297 153,450
1,266,297 153,450
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HSBC C.I.
HSBC Private Bank C.l. Limited

27 800 6,944

60 GY1 1EE

HSBC 20 31 HSBC

State Street Custodial Services Ireland Limited

27 200,000 3,737.6

HSBC

State Street Fund Services Ireland Limited

27 350,000 6,540.8

HSBC

HSBC
HSBC Alternative Investments Limited

27 1,078,543 3,070

SW1A 1JB 78
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HSBC Securities Services (Ireland) Limited

27 8 1,000,005 2,118
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
6,450
HSBC HSBC
27 22,422,137,143
27 960 5,245 7,252.5
5,699 954
27 31 UFJ
27 781
HSBC C.l.
HSBC Private Bank C.I. Limited

1987

State Street Custodial Services Ireland Limited
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State Street Fund Services Ireland Limited

HSBC
HSBC Alternative Investments Limited

HSBC
HSBC Securities Services (Ireland) Limited

HSBC HSBC

HSBC HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
HSBC HSBC
HSBC
HSBC
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COBO
1987
1987
2007 POI COBO
COBO

2013 27 COBO 2013

2008 10 29 1987
POI
2002 2003
HM
2008 11 24 2008
2014 2013
1990
1998
2008 10 29 POI C0BO 1987
2008 12 15
2008 ACEIS 2015
RCIS 2008 2009 30 RCIS
2008 12 15
COBO ACEIS
1987 ACEIS 6.02

2008

2008 ACEIS

1987

COBO
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10 27
D.E.
D.E. Shaw Composite Intermational Fund
Q) i)
Gii)
iv
)
(vi)
(vii) (viii)
D.E. D.E. Shaw & Co., L.L.C.
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HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HSBC SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND

Report on the financial statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements (the “financial statements”) HSBC Special
Opportunities Fund (“the Fund”) which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of 30 April 2015 and the
consolidated statement of total return, the consolidated statement of movement in net assets attributable to the
holders of redeemable participating units for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Manager's responsibility for the financial statements

The Manager is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with United Kingdom Accounting Standards and with the requirements of Guernsey law. The Manager is also
responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the Manager, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Fund as of 30 April
2015, and of the financial performance for the year then ended in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Trust Deed.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
We read the other information contained in the Annual Report and consider the implications for our report if we
become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements. The other
information is as detailed in the table of contents.

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Fund's unitholders as a body in
accordance with paragraph 6.02(1) of the Authorised Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules 2013 and for
no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to
any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by
our prior consent in writing.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers CI LLP
Chartered Accountants
Guernsey, Channel Islands

Date: 29 September 2015
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HSBC CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES FUND

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF HSBC CREDIT MARKET OPPORTUNITIES
FUND

Report on the financial statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements (the “financial statements”) of HSBC Credit
Market Opportunities Fund (“the Fund”) which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of 30 April 2015 and the
consolidated statement of total return, the consolidated statement of movement in net assets attributable to the
holders of redeemable participating units for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Manager's responsibility for the financial statements

The Manager is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with United Kingdom Accounting Standards and with the requirements of Guernsey law. The Manager is also
responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the Manager, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Fund as of 30 April
2015, and of the financial performance for the year then ended in accordance with United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Trust Deed.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
We read the other information contained in the Annual Report and consider the implications for our report if we
become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements. The other
information is as detailed in the table of contents.

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Fund's unitholders as a body in
accordance with paragraph 6.02(1) of the Authorised Collective Investment Schemes (Class B) Rules 2013 and for
no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any
other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our
prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers CI LLP
Chartered Accountants
Guernsey, Channel Islands

Date: 29 September 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF
HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED

We have audited the Company financial statements of HSBC Management (Guernsey) Limited (the “Company™)
for the year ended 31 December 2014 which comprise them Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Balance
Sheet, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Cash Flow Statement and related notes. The financia reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financia Reporting
Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (‘I|ASB’).

This report is made solely to the Company’s member, as a body, in accordance with section 262 of the Companies
(Guernsey) Law, 2008. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s member
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s
member as abody, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors Responsibilities set out on page 3, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give atrue and fair view.
Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board's (APB’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Company’s
circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the Board of Directors,; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In
addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially
incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in performing the audit. If we
become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our
report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF
HSBC MANAGEMENT (GUERNSEY) LIMITED (continued)

Opinion on financia statements
In our opinion the financial statements:

e (give atrue and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2014 and of its total
comprehensive income for the year then ended;

e arein accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the IASB; and

e comply with the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008.
Opinion on other matters
We have examined the statement of financial resources set out on page 20 and in our opinion the financial
resources requirement specified in Rule 2 of the Licensees (Capital Adequacy) Rules was satisfied at 31 December
2014.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies (Guernsey) Law, 2008 requires
usto report to you if, in our opinion:

e the Company has not kept proper accounting records; or
e thefinancia statements are not in agreement with the accounting records; or

e we have not received all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief are
necessary for the purpose of our audit.

KPMG Channel Islands Limited
Chartered Accountants
Glategny Court

Glategny Esplanade

St Peter Port

GY11WR

Date: 27 March 2015
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